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BEFORE THE | LLI NO S POLLUTI ON CONTROL BOARD
ANTHONY and KAREN ROTI,

PAUL ROSENSTROCK and
LESLI E VEBER,

Conpl ai nant s,

No. PCB 99-019
VOLUME VI

VS.

LTD COMMODI Tl ES,

N N N N N N N N N N N

Respondent .
The following is the transcript of a hearing
held in the above-entitled matter taken
st enographical ly by DEBORAH T. BRAUER, CSR, a notary
public within and for the County of Lake and State of
Il1linois, before JOHAN KNI TTLE, Hearing O ficer, at 118
West Cook Avenue, Libertyville, Illinois, on the 23rd

day of May, 2000, A.D., conmencing at 9:35 a.m
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PRESENT:

STEVEN P. KAI SER & ASSOCI ATES
BY: MR STEVEN P. KAl SER
4711 ol f Road
Suite 708
Skokie, Illinois 60076
(847) 677-7066

Appeared on behal f of the
Conpl ai nant s;

BAlI ZER & KOLAR
BY: MR JOSEPH E. KOLAR
513 Central Avenue
5th Fl oor
Hi ghl and Park, Illinois 60035
(847) 433-6677

Appeared on behal f of the
Respondent .
ALSO PRESENT:

M. M chael Hara
Ms. Leslie Weber
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L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Good norning. M nane
is John Knittle. |I'ma hearing officer with the
[Ilinois Pollution Control Board. |'malso the
assigned Hearing O ficer for this matter which is PCB
Docket No. 1999-019, Anthony and Karen Roti, Pau

Rosenstrock and Leslie Weber versus LTD Commmoditi es.

This is the second go-around of hearings.

The first set of hearings were held Novenber 1st

t hrough Novenmber 5th in 1999. This hearing was noticed
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up pursuant to the Illinois Environmental Protection
Act and the Board of Regulations. It is approximtely
9:35 a.m
I do not think there are any nenbers of the
publi c.
Sir, are you here to testify?
MR. BYRNES: Yes, | am
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Okay. There are no
menbers of the public present, and | think that's all
have.
As in the last hearing, this hearing will be
run pursuant to the Board's Rul es under Section 103201
and 202, | think. Let ne take a |ook.
(Pause in proceedings.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: 103202 and 203, ny

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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apologies. And we'll be conducting it in that manner.
Correct me if I"'mwong but we're still proceeding with
conpl ai nants' case in chief?

MR. KAISER: Yes, that's where we left it when we

adj ourned back in Novenber. And at this point the
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respondents rest.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: The conpl ai nant s?

MR. KAI SER: The conpl ai nants rest.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: We don't want to rest
M. Kolar quite yet.

Al'l right. The conplainants rest.
Have you offered all your exhibits, M.
Kai ser ?

MR. KAISER: | believe we have. | just had a
chance to | ook over the Hearing Oficer's notes and the
exhibits, and | believe we have offered every exhibit.
And virtually every exhibit offered has been admtted.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: | think so. | see there
were a couple. One was reserved and that is C 23.

MR. KAISER: Let's take a | ook at that.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: That's the only one
really want to address. The rest have either been
adnmitted or denied.

MR KAISER. C-23. A letter from Schomer &

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292

Associ ates to Thomas Thunder dated February 27, 1998.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Correct.

And, for whatever reason, in my disposition
colum of the exhibit list | have "reserved."

MR. KAISER This was a letter which | believe was
referenced extensively in Dr. Schoner's deposition
transcript which was Exhibit CG65. | would ask you,

M. Knittle, to review your notes and see whether C-65
has been offered and admitted.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: C-65 is offered and
adm tted.

MR, KAISER: And | woul d suggest that C-23 be
admtted at this point.

MR. KOLAR: | think the reason we reserved this is
because M. Thunder is testifying in nmy case, in fact
tomorrow, and | had a problemw th this just being
admitted w thout him because of the reference in
Par agraph 1 where M. Schoner inplies that M. Thunder
agrees it should be a Class B use and in fact he does
not .

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kaiser, is that your
recollection? You want to wait until we hear Thunder's
testi mony?

And, M. Kolar, would you allow M. Kaiser to

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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offer it at that point?

MR KOLAR: Sure.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Even those his case is
cl osed?

MR. KOLAR  Sure.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Is that okay with M.
Kai ser ?

MR. KAI SER: That's fine.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Let's do that then

M. Kol ar, you nentioned you had a
prelimnary matter you wanted to address before we got
rolling?

MR, KOLAR: Right.

And just one thing for the record, M. Hara
is here as well this norning.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Correct.

MR KOLAR: | don't recall if I heard that. Maybe
you said that.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: | did not, you are
correct. | do note M. Hara fromLTD Commodities is
present here today.

MR, KOLAR: And the conplainants are not here

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: | al so note that there

are no conpl ai nants present at this point in tine.
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MR, KOLAR: One thing | wanted to do is | thought
it would help for the record at the start of our case
have -- the conplai nants each answered basic
interrogatories, which are marked as Respondent's 1, 2
and 3. | just wanted to read, as admi ssions into the
record, at one spot what the conplai nants have stated
regardi ng when they acquired their property because now
we have a very lengthy record with that information
t hroughout the proceedings.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: You want to let M.

Kai ser take a gander?

MR. KOLAR Interrogatory 4 for each of the
conplainants. And | would just read verbatimtheir
answer. Do you have a problemw th that?

MR. KAISER: | nean, | think it's alittle
unusual . Al three of those individuals were called
here, were sworn and testified at sone | ength under
oath. And if there was any issue about when they noved
into their house, | think that was better addressed
t hrough direct testinony.

MR, KOLAR: Well, it's ny case. They have nmde
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admi ssions in interrogatory answers, and, as | recall
they all didn't have the best of nenories as to when

exactly they noved into their hones or purchased their

L.A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

homes. It's a pretty sinple matter. |It's a crucia
issue with the case regarding priority of |ocation

think is what it says under Section 33 factors.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: You'd want to read these

in as acknow edgi ng that they're hearsay statenents but

the fact that they're adm ssions fromthe opposite
party?

MR. KOLAR Right. And | think adm ssion is not
hearsay. Adnission of a party by definition is not
hear say.

MR, KAISER: | withdraw nmy objection. | nmean, |
assisted in the preparation of those. Those are clear
statenents as to when they noved in. It will benefit
the Board to have unequi vocal statenents about when
they moved in. And so | withdraw nmy objection.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Okay. Let's do it.

MR. KOLAR  Ckay. First, Respondent's Exhibit 1
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the Rotis, M. Roti noved in in August 1990.

Next, Paul Rosenstrock. He entered into a
contract to purchase the I and and house in the fall of
1987. He closed on the purchase in the sunmer of 1988.

Leslie Weber. July 6, 1988 purchased the
vacant |and. January 1992 assuned occupancy of hone.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar, those are

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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your Respondent's Exhibits 1, 2 and 3. Are you
pl anning on offering those at a later tine?

MR KOLAR: |'m not sure yet.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Can you just identify
then for the record when the interrogatories were
proffered and responded to?

MR. KOLAR  Sure.

Respondent's Exhibit 1, the Roti interroagory
answers signed by Karen Roti Decenber 21, 1998.

Paul Rosenstrock signed his interrogatory
answers Decenmber 17, 1998. And his is Respondent's
Exhi bit 2.

Respondent's 3, Leslie Wber signed hers also
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on Decenber 17, 1998.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Thank you.

MR, KOLAR: Then respondent would call the first
Wi t ness, appraiser Kevin Byrnes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Byrnes, can you have
a seat and the court reporter will swear you in

(Wtness sworn.)
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar.
KEVI N BYRNES,

called as a witness herein, having been first duly

sworn, was exam ned and testified as foll ows:

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR KOLAR:
Q Coul d you state your nanme for the court

reporter, please?

A Kevin Byrnes, B-y-r-n-e-s?

Q And what do you do for a |iving?

A I'"'ma real estate appraiser and consultant.
Q Where do you live?

A In El mhurst, Illinois.
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Q
A
Chi cago.
Q

Who do you work for?

WIlliam A. McCann & Associ at es.

VWhere is that business |ocated?

That's |located at 414 North Oleans in

How | ong have you worked at

Associ at es?

McCann &

How | ong has McCann been in business if you

A. Approxi mately five years.
Q
know?
MR. KAI SER: Obj ection, relevance.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar.

MR, KOLAR:

No response.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE:  Overrul ed.

THE W TNESS:

busi ness under

L. A. REPORTING (312)

BY MR. KOLAR:

Q

his own nane since 1962.

M. MCann has been independently in

419- 9292

Can you tell the Pollution Control Board what

you do for WIlliamA. MCann & Associ ates?

A

I''man appraiser

on the staff,

principa
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associate partially responsible for day-to-day

management of the firm as well as performng appraisal

proj ects.
Q How many apprai sers are there on the staff?
A There is approxinmately 10 at the nonent.

Q And for the five years that you have been
there can you name sone representative clients of the
firmthat woul d have no objection with you giving their
names?

MR. KAI SER: Objection. Representative clients of
the firmdoesn't tell the Board anything about M.
Byrnes' qualifications. | wouldn't object to
representative clients that M. Byrnes has done work
for. To try to buff up his credentials by reference to
what the firmhas done I think is inappropriate.

MR, KOLAR: 1'Il withdraw the questi on.

BY MR. KOLAR:
Q You were hired by LTD Commodities regarding

this noi se hearing?

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292

1258

A Yes, | was.
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And you' re being paid?

>

Yes.

Q What's your rate?

A We're billing LTD at ny hourly rate, which is
$175 per hour.

Q And is that a standard rate for private

clients?
A. Yes, that's what we charge generally.
Q In the five years prior to coning to McCann

what did you do for a living?

A I was a commercial appraiser for a conpany
cal l ed Real Estate Analysis Corporation |ocated in
downt own Chi cago.

Q And what type of properties did you appraise
wor ki ng for that conpany?

A. A variety of commercial and residentia
properties.

Q How | ong were you there?

A For five years.

Q VWhat did you do before working at Real Estate
Anal ysi s Corporation?

A I was a real estate sal esperson in the

sout hwest suburbs of Chicago.

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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Q If | understand the |aw correctly, a
sal esperson works under a broker's |icense?
A That's right.

Q What busi ness did you work for?

A. At the tinme the sponsoring broker's name was

Regi na Mundel |, and the franchi se was ERA Reggie &

Associ ates on Cicero Avenue.

Q So as a sal esperson you had sone sort of
license fromthe State of Illinois?

A Yes, | had a sal esperson’'s |icense.

Q How Il ong did you -- can we call that -- was

that when you were a realtor or is that not a proper
ternf

A Well, | was a dues payi ng nenber of the
Nati onal Association of Realtors. And "realtor" is a
trademark nane. And if you're a nenber of the
Associ ation of Realtors, you can call yourself a
realtor. So the answer is yes.

Q Al right. How long were you in this

busi ness as a sal esperson/realtor?

A Approxi mately five years before going to Rea

Estate Anal ysis Corporation, although |I continued to
hold ny real estate license after that.

Q As of today?
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A. Currently it's not active. | haven't really
used it.

Q That was just a voluntary decision on your
part because you were in a new |line of business?

A Yes.

MR. KAI SER:  Obj ection, |eading.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar, you want to
rephr ase

BY MR. KOLAR:

Q Why don't you have your license active
anynor e?
A Because |'m not engaged in the sale of

single-famly hones. M business is conpletely taken
up as a real estate appraiser/consultant.

Q When you were a sal esperson what type of
properties did you list?

A Ei t her vacant |ots for devel opment or
i nproved single-fanm |y hones, also attached
single-fam |y hones, condos and townhouses.

Q What is your education after high school ?

A After high school | attended University of

Notre Dane and received a Bachelor of arts degree. And

1260
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then | attended the University of Chicago and received

a Master of arts degree. Followi ng that |I have al so

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292

t aken education courses related to the real estate
field, which were required both for ny real estate

sal esperson |icense and for my state genera
certification license fromthe Ofice of Banks and Rea
Est at e.

Q What did you have to do to obtain your
sal esperson |icense when you did that in ternms of
courses?

A That was basically to take a course which |
believe met nightly. That was quite a while ago, but
my recollection serves it net nightly for eight to ten
weeks, and there was an exam \Wen you passed the
exam then you were qualified to sit for the State's
exam for a sal esperson.

Q And then you took the State's exanf?

A Yes.

Q And passed it?
A

Yes.

1261
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Q And in terns of education as a real estate
apprai ser can you explain to the Board the courses you
took in that regard?

A Well, the requirenents of the State of
I1linois to beconme a State General Certified Appraiser

which is my current designation with the State, at the

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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time that 1| was so qualified, were, | believe, 165
hours of courses and 2,000 hours of appraisa
experience submitted in a log and al so passing an
exam nation. And | submitted all those requirenents
and was accept ed.

Q So then you have been in the business as a
real estate appraiser as of today for how many years?

A Approxi mately ten years.

Q Now, there is a designation in the appraisa
busi ness known as MAI for Menber Appraisal Institute,
correct?

A That's right.

Q Do you have that?

No, | don't.
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Q Are you doing anything to obtain that?
Yes. I'min the last -- close to the fina

stages of finishing the requirenents of the Appraisa
Institute to apply for that designation.

Q Have you had any experience in Lake County
regar di ng apprai sing hones?

A Yes, | have.

Q Can you explain to the Pollution Contro
Board the areas in Lake County where you have had

experience apprai sing hones?

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292

A | have apprai sed hones in Lake Bluff, in

Hi ghl and Park, in Barrington and South Barrington. The

homes were either single-fam |y detached honmes singly

or, in one case, the entire Wnstone subdi vision, which

i ncluded a | arge nunber of single-fam |y hones.

Q And that's in the Barrington area?

A Ri ght, off of Route 12.

Q Is that a golf course community?

A. Yes.

Q About how many homes were involved there?

1263
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A | believe there were about 100 hones.

Q And for what purpose did you appraise those
hones?

A The Honeowner's Associ ati on was enbarki ng on
a collective property tax appeal, and, therefore, | had
to appraise all the hones in the community.

Q Do you have any non-residential appraisa
experience in Lake County?

A Yes.

Q Can you explain that to the Board?

A. In the last ten years | have appraised
various industrial properties, office properties, and
vacant land in areas again such as Lake Bluff. [|I'm

currently working on an appraisal for the City of Lake

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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Forest on Western Avenue of sonme vacant land. | have
al so appraised property in the Waukegan area, in
Li bertyville, and throughout the general Lake County
ar ea.

Q How about experience outside of Lake County

in terns of residential and non-residential?
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A | have appraised residential properties
i ncludi ng both single-fanm |y hones, attached
condom nium type homes, and | arge garden apartnment or
el evator apartment buil di ngs throughout the six county
area over the last ten years. That would include Cook
County and all the surrounding collar counties.

Q What states have you worked in as an
appr ai ser?

A Well, they're listed on my professiona
bi ography, which | believe you have a copy of. But,
anong ot hers, obviously the State of Illinois. | have
apprai sed property in Mssouri, OChio, Florida, Texas,
New York State, Tennessee recently. |n about ten
di fferent states.

Q As an apprai ser have you testified before any
courts or adm nistrative agencies?

A Yes.

Q Where have you testified in terns of court

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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experience?

A I have testified before the Circuit Court of
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Cook County and the Bankruptcy Court of the Northern
District of Illinois.

Q In terns of admi nistrative agenci es where
have you testified, what boards?

A II'linois Property Tax Appeal Board, various
Boards of Review around the State, City of Chicago
Zoni ng Boards of Appeals, the Cook County and Du Page
County Zoni ng Boards of Appeals.

Q And when you say vari ous Boards of Review
around the State, these are the county boards that
initially hear and assess val uati on conplaints from
property owners?

A Yes, once those property owners have reached
what they think is a satisfactory result fromthe
townshi p assessor, they can then pursue their appea
with the Local Board of Review at the county I|evel.

Q And then the level after that is what?

A The Property Tax Appeal Board.

Q And have you testified before that Board?

A Yes.

Q The Property Tax Appeal Board, that's an

Illinois statew de --

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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Yes.

-- Board, correct?

> o »

That's right.

Q Do you have any know edge of LTD Commoditi es
before work on this project?

A Yes.

Q And how did you have fanm liarity with LTD
before this project?

A. Before this project | was actually hired by
LTD to appraise its property in relation to an assessed
val ue question.

Q Okay. And as part of that project did you
fam liarize yourself with the area?

A Yes, | did.

Q In terns of again the LTD appraisal project
what did you do in ternms of famliarizing yourself with
the area?

A Well, at the tine | did what | --

MR, KAISER: Can we get a tine franme on that just
for foundation?

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar.

BY MR KOLAR:
Q Do you recall when that was?

A That woul d have been -- | believe we were



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292

first hired in 1996 and worked through the early part
of 1998 prior to the resolution of that matter.
Q And in terns of familiarizing yourself with

the area what did you do in ternms of the appraisa

proj ect?
A. Well, in addition to inspecting the property
itself, | did what | always do when |'m appraising a

property which is to | ook at what the surroundi ng uses
are. | didn't investigate the area to the north, which
is part of the subject case right now, as intensively
as | have for this assignnent. But | was aware that
there were single-fanm|ly hones i mediately to the north
of LTD at that tine, as well as comercial office

buil dings to the east, and comrercial uses to the
south, and the Tri-State to the west.

Q And is LTD your client in this case?

A. Yes.

Q Respondent's Exhibit 4 is a copy of the
Pol l uti on Control Board conplaint. Have you seen this
bef ore?

A Yes, | have.

Q And Paragraph 8, did you read this at sone
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A Yes.
L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
1268
Q In Paragraph 8 did you read the allegation by

the conpl ai nants that LTD "depresses the value of the
conpl ai nants' properties"?

A Yes, | did.

Q Did LTD or | guess nyself on behalf of LTD
request you to do anything in regard to that
al | egation?

A Yes.

Q Okay. Have you formed opinions relative to
that allegation?

A Yes, | have.

Q Before we get to that, what, if anything, did
you do to investigate or do background work before
form ng your opinions?

A. Well, initially, after receiving the
assignnment, | reviewed any of the docunmentation that we
were sent, which in the early course | believe was a

copy of the Pollution Control Board complaint. And
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then, towards the end of March and begi nning of Apri
of 1999, | received copies of deposition transcripts
for each of the conplainants plus two real estate
brokers and al so one of the conplainant's husband's,
whi ch was Henry Weber. And so | read those.

| also investigated the area, through
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physi cal inspections, on a nunmber of occasions. O
course, | inmediately inspected the area after being
retained and then also went to the | ocal township
Assessor's Ofices, reviewed plats of survey and the
plats of the subdivision. | went on the M.S to see
what honmes were selling for in the area.

Q What's M.S?

A That the Multiple Listing Service of Northern
I1linois which is a conmputer-related service where you
can call up properties which have either been sold or
listed or currently listed and expired, what they sold
for, who the brokers were, and that sort of
i nformati on.

Q In terns of inspecting the area, can you be
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nore specific where did you go, walk, drive?

A Well, on nmy first inspection |I believe I
exited the Tri-State and drove east to Tel egraph Road
and then north on Tel egraph and then eventual |y nade ny
way al ong Arbor Lane and down to Wedgewood Drive which
is where the three conplainants' homes were | ocat ed.
And at that point Wedgewood Drive is parallel to -- it
runs east and west. It's parallel to the south
property |ines of the conplainants' properties. So

drove through there and noted what kinds of

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292

i nprovenents were on the lots. | had tax plat maps and
subdi vi si on maps in hand both fromthe Wdgewood Drive
side and also the LTD parking lot side. | |ooked to
see where those property lines were and how the | and
was actually inproved.

In the LTD case there was a surface parking
ot leading up to a short grassy area and then sone
shrubbery and trees and then fences for the backs of
the lots of the conpl ai nants.

And then on the subdivision side, obviously I
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saw a nunber of single-fanmily hones which | was aware
were built generally fromthe late "80s into the early
1990s.

Q And in terns of -- you nentioned inprovenents
on the lots, you're tal king about the homes on the
conpl ai nants' lots?

A. That's right.

Q For this particular project did you go on the
LTD property?

A. Yes.

Q Did you | ook at Lake Forest nore generally as
part of this assignnment?

A Yes. | drove through areas north of Od MII

Road, which is an east-west road which nore or |ess
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defines the northern terminus of the i mediate
residential market area for the conpl ai nants’
properties. | also drove up and down Tel egraph Road
and then east of Tel egraph Road, in other words, nore
or less an area that would be described as Central Lake

Forest. And then east all the way to the Market Square
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area on Western. And finally over towards the | ake
front just to generally be acquainted with the range of
housi ng types and the prices that were paid for houses
based on the M.S information throughout that whole
geogr aphi cal area.

Q Did you, through docunent review or
ot herwi se, investigate when the conpl ai nants purchased
their hones and when the LTD operations were built,
expanded, etc.?

A Yes.

Q VWhy did you do that?

A. Well, part of the question at hand is, as |
understand it, that there was an additional |evel of
operations causing noise and |ight problens as
specified in Item A of the conplaint. And I knew from
my appraisal of LTD that the property originally was
built in the |ate 1970s, | believe 1977. And it was

expanded in 1986 and '87 to provide what is the current
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truck dock configuration. And then the warehouse

operation was physically expanded in 1995 on the side
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of the LTD property away from the conpl ai nants' houses.
And part of what | considered was whether there were
any depreciative influences on market val ue when the
conplainants first noved into their hones.

Q And you heard nme read into the record the
i nformati on regardi ng when the conpl ai nants acqui red
their properties?

A Yes.

Q And that's consistent with what you | earned
as wel|?

A Yes, that's right.

Q I know | cut you off, but anything else that
you -- before we get to your opinions, anything else
that you did investigative wi se, preparation work that
we haven't discussed?

A. That's generally it. | nentioned the MS,
the assessor's records, the depositions of the
conpl ai nants, the deposition of the two brokers who
have listed the Rotis' house, physical inspection of
the area, and observation of the |ayout of the area and
how it correlated to sone of the things that were

testified to in those depositions that | had revi ewed.
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Q You read those depositions?

A Yes.

Q And you revi ewed assessor records?

A Yes.

Q Now, depositions, are those things that you

typically rely upon in your profession in forning
opinions relative to real estate valuation issues?

A. Yes.

Q And t he assessor docunents, can you be nore
speci fic? What does the assessor have that you | ook at
in this case?

A The assessor has property record cards for
each established lot. And in the case of the subject
subdi vi si on each established subdi vi sion | ot
corresponds to a property index nunber, which then can
be identified in the assessor's records. And | was
able to see when the subdivision was first platted,
what the initial assessed values were, as well as what
the assessed values were when | did ny investigation

Q And do assessors have tax maps?

Yes.
Did you | ook at tax maps as well?

Yes, | did.

o > O >

Do tax maps have the permanent index nunbers



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292

1274

on thenf

A. That's right.

Q And do you as an appraiser typically rely
upon property record cards in form ng your opinions as
an appraiser?

A. That's one of the sources that we use, yes.

Q Peopl e in your profession do that on a
regul ar basis?

A Yes.

Q Do you typically rely upon tax maps in
form ng your opinions as an appraiser?

A Yes, that's one of the ways that we can
i dentify where properties are | ocated.

Q The M.S service that you explained, is this a
conput er service?

A Yes, it is. In the last ten years the M.S
services in the Northeast Illinois area pretty nuch
banded together froma | oose association of groups that
put out either -- some were putting out books, sone had
on -- not on-line but conputer services. And | believe
for the | ast seven or eight years there has been a
group called the Miultiple Listing Service of Northern

[llinois which you can access through on-1line
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records for practically any property in Northeast
[11inois.
Q How do you access that service, do you access

it at home, at the office?

A | do it at home and at ny office.
Q Does M.S have listings and sales or just
listings?

A They have listings. They have sales. They
have records of property that were |listed but the
contracts expired. They have |listings of properties
whi ch are under contract or which are under contract
subject to a contingency. There is six or seven
different categories of properties as they're listed on
the M.S service

Q And that service, is that sonething that you
and appraisers typically rely upon in form ng opinions
regardi ng property val uation?

A. Yes.

Q In this case did you form an opi ni on whet her
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LTD s operations, specifically noise, depresses the
val ue of conpl ai nants' properties?

A Yes, | did.

Q And what is that opinion?

Well, in my opinion, and this is taking into
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consi deration the scope of work, which was not only the
all egation in the conplaint but in reading the
conpl ai nants' depositions and in noving through this
case, understanding that the focus is the reported
increase in operations fromsone time in 1996 and
continuing through the dates of the conplainants
depositions, in other words, a change froma
one-shift-a-day to a two-shift-a-day operation. And so
nmy opinion was specifically focused on the effect of
that change in operations. And, in my opinion, by
goi ng from one-shift-a-day to two-shift-a-day
operations the LTD operations did not have any i npact
to add depreciation on the value of the conpl ai nants'
hones.

Q Did you forman opinion as to whether these
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particular lots were priced at a val ue before the
conpl ai nants purchased their homes to take into
consi deration their |ocation?

A Yes.

Q What's your opinion in that regard?

A Well, in formng my opinion | found that
there are a nunber of factors that preexist the
addition of a second --

MR. KAI SER: Excuse nme, |'mgoing to interpose an

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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objection. | don't know that this opinion has been
di scl osed.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar.

MR. KOLAR: It has been disclosed. Besides his
deposition that M. Kaiser took the opinion disclosed
is, LTD s operation has not depreciated the val ue of
conpl ai nants' honmes since trucking docks existed on the
site before the hones were built. Any depreciation in
the val ue of conplainants' property occurred before
t hey bought their |ands and hones.

So | think this opinion is certainly
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consistent with the second sentence. | guess |
basically just want himto explain his opinion here.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kai ser

MR, KAISER: | nean, if we begin with the opinion
that was disclosed in response to respondent's
interrogatories, I'mnore confortable using that as a
starting point. It sounds as if M. Byrnes has begun
to shape and taylor his opinion as the litigation is
unfol ding and has tried to formhis opinion to nore
fully neet LTD s perceived litigation needs, which have
changed over the last nine nonths. So | think if he
begins with the opinion he originally gave us, and so

we can see the evolution of his opinion so the board
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can take that evolution into consideration, |1'd be nore
confortable with that.

MR KOLAR: 1'Ill restate the question here. 1'lI
make it nore specific.
BY MR KOLAR:

Q Do you have an opini on whether there was any

depreciation in the value of the three conplai nants'
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properties before they bought their |and and hones?

A Yes.

Q And what is that opinion?

A That there was depreciation to the val ue of
t hose properties.

Q VWhat's the basis for that opinion, that there
was existing depreciation before they cane in and
purchased the |ots?

A Well, there were several factors at work
there. And hopefully as | explain this, this may or it
may not clarify for M. Kaiser ny opinion, but the
factors at work here are location -- it's essentially
the location but there are several elenments of |ocation
at work here. One is that the three conpl ai nants
properties are all immedi ately adjacent to a comrercia
i ndustrial district in Bannockburn. That commrercia

i ndustrial district preexisted the subjects

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

subdi vi sion. Now, part of the reason for this arising
historically, and it was just a matter that | noted and

considered, is that there are two different
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muni ci palities here. The LTD property conmes up to the
north end of the Bannockburn corporate border. North
of that is Lake Forest. |If you go to the south al ong
the east side of the Tri-State, you see there is -- and
ext endi ng beyond the map, which is in front of us as an
exhibit --

Q Exhibit 89 for the record.

A -- there is a band of commercial industria
type devel opnents extending far to the south. Now,
when you go north of LTD, you have got a residentia
subdi vision. And | just note that historically you
have had a comercial industrial developnent in LTD and
the Corporate 100, then the subdivision was built. Now
the three properties that are fronting on that --

MR. KAISER: |1'mgoing to object with respect to
| ack of foundation with respect to Corporate 100 unl ess
he wants to lay a foundation as to when that was built.
I nove to strike his testinony with respect to
Cor porate 100.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar

MR, KOLAR: 1'Ill ask hima question in that

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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regard.

BY MR. KOLAR:

Q What's the basis for -- strike that.
Exhibit 89 --
A Yes.
Q -- you have seen this before, correct?
A Yes.
Q And it shows the LTD facility, right?
A Yes.
Q And your understandi ng, based on working for

LTD, is that this box that says 1986, that's the FMC
bui | di ng?

A Yes.

Q And your understanding is that was there
si nce when?

A Approxi mately 1977.

Q And then the '87 box, that neans what to you
as an appraiser with a famliarity of this building?

A. That was in addition to the origina
bui | di ng.

Q 1995, that's what?

A That's a further addition to the south of the
same subj ect property buil ding.

Q When you said "Corporate 100" was that -- do
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you see where we wote "Cl00" on this map?

A Yes.

Q What do you understand that building to be?

A That's an office building.

Q And is that what you referred to as
"Cor porate 100"7?

A Yes.

Q Now, do you know when Corporate 100 was
built?

A No, | don't.

Q Do you know when Corporate 100 was built
relative to the subdivision to the north?

A Well, | can tell you that in the depositions
of the conpl ai nants --

MR KAI SER: (Objection, asked and answered. He
doesn't know when it was built.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: | think it's a different
guesti on.

Correct, M. Kolar?

MR, KOLAR: Right. The second question was, "Wat
do you know about Corporate 100 versus the subdivision
to the north in terms of priority?"

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: 1'Il let himattenpt to
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THE W TNESS: Thank you.

Based on conpl ai nants' depositions, they
stated that one of the factors they were aware of, when
they were buying their lots or their hones, was the
exi stence of the Corporate 100 buil ding, which they
didn't always identify as Corporate 100 but they
identified it as a conmercial office building, which
means that regardless of when it was built it certainly
preexi sted the conplainants com ng to their properties.

MR. KAISER: |'mgoing to nove to strike. | don't
think that satisfies the foundational requirenment
unl ess he can tell ne which conplainant's deposition
he's recal ling and who nade that observation. | don't
think it holds uniformy to conplainants plural, it may
apply to one but not all of the conpl ai nants.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar.

MR, KOLAR: | think it's a big waste of tine to go
t hrough deposition transcripts. | think the record

will speak for itself regarding the conpl ainants
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know edge of commercial to the south. |If you want to
make it one or nore of the conplainants, that's fine,
we woul d stipulate that one or nore of the conplainants
had knowl edge of the office building to the south when

t hey purchased their |ots.

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kaiser, does that
al l eviate your objection and notion to strike?

MR, KAISER: Yes. | allowit to be qualified to
t hat extent.

BY MR KOLAR:

Q Unl ess you can tell us as you sit there.

A. I can tell you as | sit here that Henry
Weber, who is not one of the conplainants, but he's
married to Leslie Wber who's one of the conplainants
jointly with her purchased their ot in 1988. And when
they were discussing the fact -- as was stated in the
depositions, one of the factors that he considered was
there was a conmercial office building to the south of
their property. And in sone respects he thought that

that was -- there were certain pluses because it would
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be a qui et neighbor but then certain negatives because
you're | ocated next to an office building.
However, my foundation for stating that the

Corporate 100 preexisted any of the conplai nants coning
to their properties is at the very |least M. Wber
sayi ng that they bought their ot in 1988 and he knew
that the office building was there.

Q Anyway, | think you were giving us the basis

for your opinion that three conplainants' |ots had

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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experienced depreciation before they even purchased

their lots, do you recall where you were in that

regard?
A Yes.
Q Okay.
A There were several factors that already

preexi sted the conpl ai nants purchasing their lots or

in the case of the Rotis, they bought the house already
built. The Tri-State was there. LTD was al ready
there. Corporate 100 was al ready there.

Anot her factor is the fixed character of



12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

their location in the far southwest corner of Lake
Forest has a negative inpact on the val ue of these
properties conpared to what they would have if they
were in central or eastern Lake Forest. That's a
preexi sting factor that can't be changed. All those
factors were there prior to the reported 1996 and | ater
addition of the second shift operation at LTD. And, in
nmy opinion, all those factors contributed substantia
depreciation already to the conpl ai nants' hones.

Q In terns of setting the value of the lots
before the conpl ai nants purchased thenf

A. Yes or in the case of the Rotis' property,

their hone when they bought it in 1990.
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Q Based on what you told us, this '95 expansion
cane after each of the conplainants were living to the
north?

A Yes.

Q And what's the basis for your opinion that
you don't believe the '95 expansion has depressed the

val ue of their hones?
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A Well, nmaybe the best way to do this is
explain how | |ooked at this. And if you say -- the
positive hypothesis | was testing was, was there
depreci ati on caused by what they're alleging in their
conplaint which is that in -- some tine in 1996 there
was an increase in operations and that the noise and
light from LTD causes depreciation.

Now, in | ooking at the three conplai nants'
depositions, Karen Roti said -- when she was asked if
there was a depreciative effect, she said that she
t hought there was because no one would want to live
next to a 24 hour operation. So she was very clear in
thinking that, yes, there was a clear depreciative
effect, not only | assunme since 1990, but she
specifically referenced a 24 hour operation. In other

words, what | understood was a two-shift operation not

a three-shift operation, but, in any event, a growth in
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the operations of LTD is what she was referencing.

Now, | next | ooked at --

Q Let me ask you a question
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A. Yes.

Q Do you have any know edge that LTD is a 24
hour operation?

A Well, | can tell you |I have never spent 24
hours at the LTD property. However, | spoke with Jack
Voi gt, who's enployed with LTD, and specifically asked
him "Has there ever been a 24 hour operation at LTD?"
And he told me there was not, there was a second shift
that went from-- that was added that went from3:30 to
12:30, and that at certain points in the late '90s,
during the period under question, they did incur sone
overtime which would take themto 1 or 1:30 in the
norning. That's what was represented to ne. And that
then the addition of a warehouse in Aurora took sone of
the pressure off that overtime.

Q So what did that nean to you relative to
Karen Roti's conment that nobody would want to |ive by
a 24 hour operation?

A Well, | understand that Ms. Roti is not a --
say a litigation expert or | understand where she's

coming fromso to speak. On the other hand, if she

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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really was trying to base her argunent on the fact that
there were 24 hours of operations, then to sonme extent
you have to di scount her opinion because it was not a
24 hour operation. However, | will grant that in her
opi nion she thought there was a depreciative val ue
based on increased operations. The way she put it was
24 hour, maybe she was saying that for enphasis or
maybe she really thought there were 24 hours of
operations, but that's not what | understand.

Q And then the other bases for your opinion
that you don't believe the '95 expansi on has depressed
t he value of their |and?

A Well, as | was saying --

MR. KAl SER:  Excuse nme. Just by way of
clarification, '95 expansion, are you tal king about
strictly the physical expansion of the warehouse to the
south in 1995 or are you tal king about the increase in
truck traffic on the dock area | ocated at the northern
end of the building?

MR, KOLAR: Well, | object to his objection. |
don't know if that accurately states the facts in the
record, but | assunme he's going to explain to us the
basis for his opinion and whether it's the warehouse

itself or any alleged increase in truck traffic. So
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think it's premature. | think he was getting to that.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kai ser

MR, KAISER: Well, let's see where he goes.

THE W TNESS: Ckay.

MR. KAISER: | just want to note for the record
there is some anbiguity to the question

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: | take it, M. Kaiser
you' re concerned that the Board is going to be confused

about the '95 expansion to the south of LTD and the

al |l eged --
MR KAISER: Right. If you confuse the '95
expansion -- if you confuse a physical expansion of the

war ehouse facility with an increase in truck traffic --
I nean, he's about to tell us the 1995 expansi on didn't
have any inpact. And if you're reading the records and
you're not certain that he's tal king about just an
increase in the square footage of the warehouse and not
the increase in truck traffic, | think you could be
confused about his opinion.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Okay. 1I'mgoing to
overrule it. | think you can address that on cross
exami nati on.

MR. KAISER: All right. Thank you.
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BY MR. KOLAR:

Q M. Byrnes, you have been to the LTD property

how many tinmes since that expansion to the south was

conpl et ed?
A Well, | was there several tinmes when | was
apprai sing the property. | was there four tines, |

beli eve, before M. Kaiser took ny deposition |ast
July. And | have gone by there probably three or four
times, maybe nore, since then. |In sone cases if | was
doi ng appraisal work in the area | would just go by to
see if anything had changed.

Q So as part your work for this particular
noi se heari ng have you observed LTD s trucking
operations since the building was expanded in 1995?

A Yes.

Q Can you continue on explaining the basis for
your opinion regarding that?

A | suppose | can clarify at this point, just
to make |ife easier for everybody, that what | was

tal ki ng about, even back in my deposition and what |
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ef fect of not

1995 additi on but the increased | eve

because, as |
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said, M. Voigt did tell ne that

9292

there was a second shift added. So | do understand

that there was an addition to the | eve

And that's part

Al

conpl ai nant s’

of activities.

of the basis of ny opinion.

right. So | was going through the

depositions particularly with what they

sai d about the question of whether there has been

depreciation on their properties. GCkay. Karen Roti is

pretty clear that she thinks there was.

Now, Leslie

Weber, when she was asked that question -- she was

asked in her

val ue of your

deposi tion,

house and | ot

depreciated by LTD s operations?" And

"Now, do you believe that the

have in any way been

her answer was,

"No." That was the sumtotal of her answer. So from

Leslie Weber's answer,

think there was --

depreci ati on,

| et

that there had ever

al one fromthe recent

you would think that she didn't

been any

i ncrease in
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operations, which is a contradiction to what Karen
Roti's opinion seens to be.

Then the third conpl ai nant Paul Rosenstrock
was asked, "Do you believe that your house is worth
nore than $550, 000 today?" And his deposition was
taken in March of 1999. And his answer was, "I hope

so. In other words, he hopes that it is worth nore.

Q What was the rel evance of the $550, 000

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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numnber ?

A The $550, 000 is the anount that M.
Rosenstrock paid for the ot and house which was built
for himas a build-to-suit.

And then as a follow up question he was asked
whet her his house has depreciated due to the influence
of LTD s operations. And his answer was, "I don't
know. "

So in looking at what conpl ainants had to
say, as a first level of seeing what the opinions would
be, Karen Roti says "Yes;" Leslie Whber says, "No;" and

Paul Rosenstrock says, "I don't know." So there
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doesn't seemto be a consensus anong the conpl ai nants,
at least in their deposition records, as to whether
there is any depreciative influence due to LTD' s
operations.
Now, why would | be interested in what they
have to say? Well, the reason is that depreciation --
Q Why woul d you be interested in -- let nme ask
you a question.
Why woul d you be interested in what the
conpl ainants had to say about this issue?
A. I"msorry, | wasn't try to play the

attorney's role.
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MR. KAI SER: Objection, narrative | think would be
appropriate at this point.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: But we have corrected
that, correct?

MR KAI SER: yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: You can proceed, sir

THE W TNESS: The conpl ai nants are owners of their

properties and therefore they are part of the potentia
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mar ket for their properties. And that's rel evant
because the question of depreciation has to be exam ned
in the context of market value. Market value is

devel oped by what buyers and sellers think and perceive
to be the influences on val ue.

BY MR, KOLAR:

Q So besides the deposition testinony of the
conpl ai nants, what other bases for your opinion
relative to the '95 expansion and any activity because
of that depresses the value of the conpl ainants
properties?

A | also took into account the statements in
their depositions of Marcia Row ey and Karen Di ckey.

Q And who are they?

A They are real estate brokers who successively

|listed the Rotis' house for sale in 1996 and 1997.

L.A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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Q What, if anything, did you rely upon in that
regard?
A I noted that each of the brokers showed the

hones many tines. | believe Marcia Row ey showed the
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house -- | shouldn't say that she personally showed it,
but while it was listed with her she testified that
there were about 60 showi ngs. Karen Dickey, while the
property was |listed with her, testified that there were
30 to 40 showi ngs. And neither of these brokers had an
of fer on the property.

Now, when asked about various factors that
were negative factors for the Roti house, which was the
house they |isted, not one of themcited noise
specifically fromLTD. They did have sonme very
specific and in sone cases reiterated opi nions on what
the true factors were that caused depreciation to the
Rotis' property. Nanely, the location in the sort of
peri pheral or far southwestern part of Lake Forest as
wel | as sinply the physical --

MR, KAISER: |1'mgoing to object at this point
unl ess he's going to site particular portions of M.
Rowl ey and Ms. Dickey's deposition transcripts. | know
we're going to have Ms. Row ey testify, but his sumrmary

wi thout reference to the actual transcript, | think is

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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too unreliable.

MR KOLAR: | don't think he's required to do

that. He's an opinion witness. He said that these are

things he typically relies upon. Maybe he can do that.
BY MR KOLAR:

Q Can you do that? Can you give us, M.
Byrnes, the pages fromthe transcript that you're
referring to?

A If you're willing to wait while | find the
ref erences.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kai ser.

MR KAISER We'll wait if the Board will.

BY MR. KOLAR:

Q What transcript are we tal ki ng about ?

A This is Marcia Row ey's deposition taken
March 19, 1999.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Let's go off the record
for a second.

(Di scussion off the record.)
BY MR KOLAR:

Q M. Byrnes, did you find in Marcia Row ey's
transcri pt the page where she indicates the drawbacks
relative to the Roti property?

A Yes.

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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Q What page is that?

A Page 28.

Q Is that the page that you were relying upon
for your earlier coment of drawbacks?

A Well, it's certainly one of the pages. |
read her entire deposition. She makes several, but |

can read you what she said, the question and the

answer .
Q This is sonething you relied upon?
A Yes. Now, the uestion was, "Wat were the

drawbacks to the Roti hone?" The answer was, "The
drawbacks were that the yard, in that there was nore
side yard than backyard, so people felt it was |ess of
a functional backyard because npost of the yard was to
the side. And the house wasn't placed in the center of
the property. The fact that it was very far west,
sout hwestern corner of Lake Forest, and the noise, and
the comrerci al devel opnent. Those four things."

Q And that and other references in the
transcript, what relevance did that have to your
opi nion that the '95 expansion and trucking activity
did not depress the value of the conplainants'
properties?

A Well, | also took into account in answering
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your question Page 37 where she was asked this
question, "And | take it, just so I'mclear, as you sit
here today you' re not able to distinguish between noise
that would cone fromthe office building to the south,
noi se that m ght be coming fromthe LTD facility or

noi se that's conmng fromthe tollway?" Mrcia Rowey's
answer was, "Correct."

Q For the record that was a question by M.

Kai ser.

So those two passages, how do those provide
the bases for your opinion that the '95 expansi on and
truck activity fromthat expansion did not depress the
Roti property value and the other conpl ainants'
properties?

A Because Marcia Rowl ey cited a nunber of
factors that she thought were inportant, such as we
just heard: The location within Lake Forest, the
proximty to commercial devel opnment, the particul ar
configuration of the way the house is cited on the |ot,

the short backyard. But she wasn't able to
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specifically point to noise fromLTD as a factor that
she coul d di stinguish fromthe tollway noise or any
ot her noise in the area.

Q In your experience, as a realtor and an

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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apprai ser, do people |ook at homes at 12:30 in the

nor ni ng?
A No.
Q Does that have any inpact on your opinion as

to the LTD operations?

A Yes.

Q How is that?

A Well, one of the factors involved here is,
again, as the two realtors testified in their
depositions, there were anywhere from90 to 100
showi ngs of this property. Now, neither Karen Roti nor
the brokers told the buyers that there was a noise
problemor that they felt there was a noise probl em
fromLTD. So if the buyers are | ooking at the
properties at the traditional tines of day, sonme of

themw Il | ook at the property during weekdays during
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the day, some when they get home from work which nay be
| ate afternoon, early evening, maybe right after

di nner, others will |ook at properties that they m ght
be wanting to buy on Saturdays or Sundays but they're
not going to be |looking at properties late in the

eveni ng, 10:30, 11:30, 12:30 at night. So for the

all eged factors -- even if we said, for the sake of

argunent, that the hypothesis was true, that these late

L.A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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ni ght operations did cause sonme additional depreciative
effect, there is no way that the prospective buyers
going to the Roti property would have known about it
because it wasn't disclosed by the brokers or by the
Rotis. And unless they went by late at night, they
bei ng the potential buyers, to see this, they wouldn't
know about any all eged unpl easant noise at night. And
if they don't know about it, it can't be a factor in
their purchase decision. If it's not a factor in their
opi nion of the price or value, then it can't have a
depreciative effect because depreciation again is

dependent on the perceptions of buyers and sellers.
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And as we -- again, as | said, there was no such
perception on the part of the prospective buyers.
Q In your experience as a realtor and an
apprai ser when people cone to | ook at any of the three
conpl ai nants' properties and they see the tollway, they
see the LTD and office to the south, naking a decision
whet her to buy is a black and white decision that
either 1 don't mind living by that or I do or do they
go to degrees like as long as it's not noisy at night |
can live there, what's your experience in that regard?
MR. KAI SER: Objection, calls for speculation

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE:  Overrul ed.

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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THE WTNESS: The factors that were nentioned by,
for exanple, Marcia Row ey and al so by Karen Di ckey,
which were the proximity -- the physical proximty to
comerci al industrial devel opnent, in my experience as
a realtor, formerly, and in ny appraisal of properties,
you're going to find buyers are going to either want to
live -- they'll be willing to |live next to a mgjor

400, 000 square foot warehouse distribution center or
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they won't. And you're not going to find people, in ny
opi nion, basing their decision on is there or isn't
there a second shift at this 26 truck dock 400,000 foot
di stribution warehouse. They're going to base their
decision on there is a distribution warehouse south of
my property line, do we want to live here? Wat's the
effect going to be on potential resale? That's a

subj ect the Webers discussed when they first bought
their lot, which predated the 1995 expansi on.

So, to sunmarize the answer to your question
in my opinion either buyers are going to say that
living next to a distribution warehouse does not bot her
themor it does. And the question of whether there is
a second shift or not is not going to add further
depreciation to all the depreciative factors that | do

recogni ze already were inherent in that |ocation

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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BY MR KOLAR:
Q And | guess just to sort of summarize, then
"Il be done, the depreciative factors that you

nmentioned, the tollway, LTD and the office building,
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you acknow edge that those at sonme point did have an
i mpact on setting the value for these -- what becane
the Roti, Rosenstrock and Webers' lots, right?

A Yes.

Q It's just that that happened when the
subdi vi sion was first platted and the market is setting
the value for the conplainants' |ots versus |ots to the

north in the subdivision?

A Yes.
Q I don't know, do | have any ot her questions?
I think we covered your -- have we covered the bases

for your opinions? Anything that we m ssed that you
feel is inmportant for the Pollution Control Board to
know?

A There were a few other ancillary or
supportive factors. And, again, | apol ogize to the
Board, these are based on things | read in the
conpl ai nants' depositions. If required, |I can find the
references precisely, but one major factor, that was

cited by several of the conplainants, was a piece of

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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equi pnent called a yard pig, which was -- | believe M.
Rosenstrock even said that was the worst offender as
far as noi se was concerned. And they also adnitted
that they knew, they being the conplainants, they knew
that LTD in 1998 had gotten a new yard pig to haul the
trailers around and that it was quieter. So that's a
subsi diary consideration that | have taken into account
that if one of the major alleged sources of extra noise
is now quieter, then all the less likely that this 1995
expansi on of building and operations has had a
depreci ative effect on the conpl ai nants' properties.

Q Okay. Anything else or is that it?

A No.

MR, KOLAR: | don't have any further questions.

MR. KAI SER:  Cross.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kai ser.

CROSS EXAM NATI ON

BY MR. KAI SER

Q M. Byrnes, have you read any of the
transcripts fromthe first part of this hearing which
was conducted in early Novenber 19997

A No, | haven't.

Q You have not then read the testinony of Henry

or Leslie Weber in this case?

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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A No.

Q You have not read --

MR, KOLAR: bjection, | think there was a notion
to basically exclude witnesses, so | think it would
have been inproper for himto read the transcript.

That that would have been, | think, tantamount to
violating the notion to exclude w tnesses.

MR, KAISER: | think if there had been any kind of
notion made for M. Byrnes to be allowed to update his
informati on by reference to the transcript in this
hearing, it would have been all owed by the Hearing
Oficer. 1 think that's an argunent w thout merit.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: |'m going to allow the
gquestion to stand but with both caveats noted.

BY MR KAl SER

Q And | take it then you didn't review Karen
Roti's testinony during the course of this hearing?

A No.

Q Nor that of M. Rosenstrock?

A That's correct.

Q And so this inpact of the yard pig being
qui eted in 1998, you don't know what affect that had on
noi se levels at LTD and in the vicinity of LTD during

the fall of 1999, do you?
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A No.

Q Now, as | understood your argunent towards
the end here, it's essentially that there is a certain
cl ass of buyers who will go out to the south end of the

subdi vi si on, see Corporate 100, see LTD s dock area,
see the tollway, and decide they either can live near
those uses or they can't, is that your opinion?

A. I would say that -- yes, as a generalization
that's my opinion

Q And that those who can live next to those
uses wWill not be disturbed by LTD s now ext ended hours
of operation, is that right?

A. No, | think the record shows that they are
di sturbed by it.

Q | see. So you're making the distinction --
and this is inmportant. You're not saying that LTD may
not be a nui sance, right?

A I"'mnot here to testify as to whether it's a
nui sance or not.

Q That's right. You're solely here to tell the

Board whether you think LTD s operations and the noise
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from LTD depreci ates the value of the Roti, Rosenstrock
and Weber hones, correct?

A. That's right.

L.A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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Q And you have no opinion to offer the Board as
to whether LTD is currently or in the past has been a
nui sance as defined by the Illinois Environmenta
Protection Act, correct?

A That's correct.

Q Now, in fact -- and you're familiar with this
aerial photograph, aren't you?
Yes.
You have seen this many tinmes, haven't you?
No.

Well, you saw it today, right?

> © »>» O >

Yes, | saw it yesterday.

Q Al right. Wen you were with M. Kol ar
preparing for your testinmony, right?

A That's right.

Q And how many hours did you spend with M.

Kol ar ?
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A About 45 mi nutes.

Q And you see that this is marked -- here is
t he Weber house, M. Rosenstrock's house and the Rot
resi dence, you recognize those in relation to LTD,
don't you?

A Yes.

Q And you told us that the Webers purchased

L.A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

their land in 1988, did you not?

A | believe that's correct, yes.

Q And you told us that you revi emwed Henry
Weber's deposition, right?

A Yes.

Q And you recall the portions of M. Wber's
depositi on where he acknow edged that to the south
there was the Corporate 100 office building, right?

A Yes.

Q And he saw that LTD had a warehouse operation

to the sout hwest, correct?
A Yes.

Q And M. Weber at that time was a person who

1305



14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

found he could live next to Corporate 100, LTD and the
tollway as it existed and as it was in operation in
1988, correct?

A Yes.

Q Did you ever ask M. Wber whether he would
buy the property now, now that LTD operates five nonths
a year for 20 hours a day?

MR, KOLAR: Objection, msstates the testinony in
the record.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kai ser.

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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BY MR. KAI SER

Q It's a sinple question. Did you ever in
part, in preparation of your opinion, ask M. Wber
whet her he woul d buy his property today?

MR, KOLAR: bjection, it's an unfair question.
Since he's represented by counsel, | don't think ny
opi nion witness or LTD s opinion witness could ask M.
Weber that question.

MR. KAISER: He certainly by agreenent could have
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asked that question. Hi s counsel could have asked that
question in the course of the deposition. He's telling
us that people who once they nmake the junp and can buy
next to these uses will be happy with that, they can
accomodat e those uses to the south.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Hold on, M. Kaiser
I'"'mgoing to sustain the objection as to a
m scharacterization of testinony, but then you asked it
a second time which | did not think mscharacterized
the testimony. |If you want to ask that question, that
will be all owed.

MR, KAI SER: Just so we know what question is
accept abl e, maybe the court reporter could read that
back.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Go ahead.

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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MR, KOLAR: My objection was he could not ask that
guestion to M. Wber because he's represented by
counsel. And that would be Iike nme discussing an issue
with a person represented by counsel.

He's LTD s retained opinion witness. | don't
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think the rules permit himto call on M. Wber and
say, "l know you're represented by Steve Kaiser but |I'd
like to talk to you on the side here."

MR. KAISER | would have allowed M. Kolar to
call ne and say, "M. Byrnes feels it inportant to know
whet her M. Weber and Ms. Weber, whether M.
Rosenstrock, whether the Rotis would still pay the
price they paid for their property in |ight of the
changed circunstances to the south.”

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: |'m going to overrule
the objection and allow the question to stand. |'m not
making a ruling one way or the other whether that's a
proper question or whether that could have been asked
under the Board's procedural rules. But if you want to
ask that question, you can go ahead.

BY MR. KAI SER

Q Did you ever ask M. Kolar to contact ne so

that you could get information whether Henry and Leslie

Weber woul d still purchase their property?

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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Q And did you ever ask M. Kolar to try to talk
with me so that you can inquire of M. Rosenstrock
whet her he would still purchase his property?

A No.

Q And did you ever ask M. Kolar to contact ne
so that he could ask the Rotis whether they would stil
today buy their property?

A No.

Q Now, it was your testinony, in |ight of your
experience as a real estate sal esperson here in the
State of Illinois, that people don't typically go | ook
at houses they're interested in buying at 12:30 a. m,
was that your testinony?

A. Yes.

Q But those same people who may buy those
houses live in their houses at 12:30 a.m, do they not?

A Yes.

Q And it was your testinony that the narket
doesn't take into consideration LTD s increased dock
operati ons because potential purchasers don't know
about the increase, that was your testinobny, wasn't it?

A Yes, that's one of the bases of my opinion.

Q Whi ch way had real estate prices in southwest

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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Lake For est

been trendi ng over the last three years?

A Over the last three years there has been a

rather m ni mal anmount of sales activity in southwest

Lake Forest.

informati on to nake a neaningfu

In my opinion there is not enough

trend anal ysis. You

coul d probably take one or two sales and say that the

trend may have been upward, but | haven't found any

evi dence to the contrary.

t hat

Q You haven't found evidence to the contrary,

is, that the trend has been upward?

A I haven't found any evi dence of a downward

trend.

Q Well, are you aware of any downward trend in

the price of real estate anywhere along the North

Shore --

MR. KOLAR:  Cbjection, relevance.

BY MR. KAI SER

Q -- over the last three years?

MR, KOLAR: bjection, relevance to the North

Shor e.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kai ser, you want to

expl ain the rel evance.

rea

MR, KAISER: | think it's comopn know edge that

estate in the Chicagol and area,

unl ess you're in a

1309



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

L.A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

1310

comunity like Dalton or Harvey or \Waukegan or Zion,
has gone up and gone up rather dramatically over the
| ast three years.
BY MR KAl SER:

Q Is that your sense of the market, M. Byrnes?

A Yes. In general that's --

MR. KOLAR  Cbjection, | thought he was --

MR. KAISER: I'Ill rephrase.

MR, KOLAR: -- responding to nmy objection.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: So did |, M. Kaiser. |
didn't realize you were going to ask another question.

MR. KAISER: | rephrased the question.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Do you want to withdraw
your objection based on that rephrasal ?

MR. KOLAR:  Fine.

Is Dalton on the North Shore? | don't know.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: | don't even know where
Dalton is so --

MR, KAISER: It's in the Chicagol and area.

MR, KOLAR: |f you rephrase it, I'll --

BY MR. KAl SER:
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Q Unless you're in a distressed or blighted
conmunity the market prices have gone up, isn't that

true, M. Byrnes?

L.A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

MR, KOLAR: | object. He had a question pending.
| withdrew nmy objection. He had another question
pendi ng before he gave hima chance to answer that one,
t hen he gave another question. So | nove to strike

that question and et M. Byrnes answer the previous

questi on.

MR, KAISER: 1'd go along with that.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: ['l1 go along with that
t 0o.

Do you recall the previous question or do you
need the court reporter to read it back?
THE WTNESS: | believe the previous question
was -- |'m paraphrasing of course -- isn't it true that
over the last three years in virtually the whole
Chi cagol and area that residential prices have gone up
dramatically except for areas |ike Dalton, Harvey,

Zi on, Waukegan and other simlar areas which | assune
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counsel thinks are |l ess desirable areas for people to
live in. And if that's the question, | can answer it.

BY MR. KAI SER:

Q That's a fair paraphrase of the question,
yes.

A Okay. Generally speaking the answer is yes.

Q So what woul d be possible --

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

MR, KOLAR: This is the Marcia Row ey who entered.

MR. KAISER No, this is Ms. Weber.

MR, KOLAR: You're right. |'msorry.

| apol ogi ze, Ms. Weber.

MR, KAISER: One of the conplainants, Leslie

Weber .

Good norning. Wl cone.
MR. KOLAR | stand corrected.
BY MR. KAl SER:
Q | nmean, that's a fair general statenent of
the trends in real estate in the Chicagol and area for
the last three years, correct?

A Yes. In fact Karen Dickey said that she
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t hought the Rotis in 1999 would have a nmuch better
chance of selling their property than when she listed
it in 1997.
Q And that's because the market for many
reasons has inproved over the |last three years, right?
A That woul d certainly be one of the reasons.
Q Now, you read us from portions of M.
Rosenstrock's deposition transcript, and you read us
the section where M. Kolar asked M. Rosenstrock
whet her he thought his house was now worth nore than

$550, 000, do you recall reading that portion?

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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A Yes.

Q You recall that M. Rosenstrock's answer was
"I hope so0"?

A. Yes.

Q And you took that as an argunment or a
statement that supported your opinion that LTD s
i ncreased dock operations have not reduced the val ue of
M. Rosenstrock's hone, wasn't that one of the bases?

A Yes.
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Q Now, it's possible, is it not, speaking
strictly theoretically here, for M. Rosenstrock's hone
to have increased in value but not at a rate simlar to
hones in sout hwest Lake Forest over the sane tine
peri od?

A Theoretically, yes, that's possible.

Q And it's theoretically possible that it
didn't keep pace with the increased val ue in sout hwest
Lake Forest over the last three years in part because
of the increased dock operations at LTD to the extent
prospective purchasers knew about the increased dock
operations?

A It doesn't correspond to ny opinion

Q That's not your opinion. Even theoretically

you wouldn't admit that as a possibility?

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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A That's correct.

Q Now, you tal ked about the hypothesis that you
were testing, do you renenber using that ternf

A Yes.

Q And do you recall during the course of your
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deposition that you were investigating a theory as to
whet her LTD s increased dock operations had an i npact
on the fair market value, do you recall that?

A That's correct.

Q And you referred to this was a sonewhat
subsidiary analysis in line with the genera
t heoretical analysis, an anal ysis based on ny
experience, do you recall that description of your work
in process?

A. Yes.

Q And | don't think you're going to tell the
Board that appraising real estate is a hard science,
are you?

A Well, I'mnot sure what that question neans.
But | think what you're saying is it's not a hard
science in the respect of if you' re a chem st testing a
chemi cal reaction, it's going to come out
quantitatively a certain way, whereas when you're

apprai sing properties, there is not enough market data
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usually to formul ate answers that way and you have to
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use some judgnent.
Q And you used judgnent here, did you not?
A Yes.

Q And you'd admt to the possibility, wouldn't

you, M. Byrnes, that another appraiser could reach the

exact opposite conclusion that you have reached and
given the Board here this norning, correct?

A Yes.

Q Do you have any idea how much McCann &
Associ ates have billed LTD for your work to date?

A Yes.

Q How nmuch is that?

MR, KOLAR: Objection. For this particular
proj ect?

MR. KAISER: Yes, for this particular project.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: |Is the objection
wi t hdrawn based on the --

MR. KOLAR  Yes.

THE W TNESS: Approxi mately $5,900 on an hourly
basi s.
BY MR. KAl SER:

Q And that's for your tinme in connection with

the preparation of your opinion?

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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A

Q

Yes.

And, as | understood it, during your

deposition | asked a question, "Who else did you rely

on down there at McCann to help you fornulate this

opi ni on?"

And you told nme it was essentially your

opi nion, you may have used sonebody to pull sone

i nformati on together but really this is your work

product, right?

A

Q

| ocati ona

Yes.
Now, you gave us a list of what | called

el enents --

MR. KOLAR: That's Marcia Row ey, | think.

MS. ROALEY: Yes.

BY MR. KAl SER

Q
property,
property.
A
Q
A.

Q

-- that affected the value of Ms. Weber's

M. Rosenstrock's property and the Rotis'

Yes.
Do you recall those?
Yes.

And you noted that all three of the

conpl ai nants' properties were i medi ately adj acent to

commerci a

A

usages, correct?

Yes.
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Q And that these comercial usages preexisted
to some extent the Webers' arrival, M. Rosenstrock's
arrival and the Rotis' arrival, right?

A Yes.

MR, KAISER: And | would just take a mnute here,
M. Knittle, to ask that the w tness be excluded
because her testinony may bear or be influenced to a
certain degree by M. Byrnes' testinony.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar.

MR, KOLAR: | think you have a right to do that.
That's why | didn't have M. Byrnes read the
transcripts fromthe hearing. | have no objection. |
understanding that's the order we're working under

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Ma'am if you could step
outside. W'Il cone get you.

Let's go off the record.
(Di scussion off the record.)
BY MR KAI SER

Q M. Byrnes, as | understand your opinion, you
make no distinction between LTD s | evel of dock
operations in 1986 and LTD s current |evel of dock

operations, is that correct?
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A. No, that's not correct.

Q Well, explain to me and to the Board how you
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take into account the increased volume of truck traffic
at LTD s dock operations?

A Well, in answering your previous question you
asked if | considered that there was a difference
bet ween the 1986 | evel of operations and what there was
say today, and, properly considered, what | |ooked at
was the level of 1987 and subsequent operations because
the current nunber of truck docks were not added unti
1987, they weren't all there in 1986.

Q Al right. So by 1987 then we have 20 or
nore truck docks along the north end of LTD?

A That's right.

Q And just so I'mclear, it's your statenent
that once you get the 20 docks in there, whether
they're used 12 hours a day or 20 hours a day doesn't
really matter?

A What |'m saying is whether they're -- just to

sharpen ny answer in relation to your question, whether
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it's a one-shift or two-shift-a-day operation is not
the major factor contributing to the depreciation of
t hese properties.
Q Is it a factor at all?
No.

Q That's my point. You're telling the Board
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that as soon as you get the 20 docks in, whether
they're in operation 12 hours a day or 20 hours a day
doesn't matter if we're tal king about fair market val ue

of the Roti, Rosenstrock and Weber residences, right?

A Yes, Counsel. As | said, the question is
whet her - -
Q That's fine. You have answered it. Your

answer is yes, right?

MR. KOLAR:  Cbjection. | don't think his question
called for a yes or no answer, so | would object and
ask that the Hearing Oficer allow himto finish his
answer .

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Overrul ed. You can

address this in redirect.
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BY MR KAI SER

Q Now, one of the sources of information that
you relied on was a conversation you had with Jack
Voigt, right?

A. Yes.

Q And Jack Voigt's one of the senior managers
at LTD, correct?

A That's what | understand.

Q And you brought that question to himand you

said, "M. Voigt, is it true you're operating 24 hours

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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a day?" You asked himthat, didn't you?

A Yes.

Q And he told you that is absolutely false,
didn't he?

A Not in those exact words but --

Q But he told you, "W don't operate 24 hours a
day," right?

A That's what he told ne.

Q "W only operate two shifts,"” that's what he

told you, right?
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A He told me two shifts and that at sone points
they had had overtime prior to the opening of the
Aurora facility.

Q And that sonetines that overtinme went even
until 1 or 1:30 he told you, right?

A Yes.

Q But he didn't tell you that overtinme went on
some occasions until 2:30 in the norning, did he?

A Not to ny recollection.

Q Well, when | asked you that question during
the course of your deposition on July 21, 1999, you
told me he didn't tell you that, do you renmenber that?

MR, KOLAR: Objection, not inpeaching. | think he

said the sanme thing in his answer here noments ago.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE:  Sust ai ned.
I don't understand, M. Kaiser, howthis is
any different than --
MR, KAISER: |I'mgoing to inpeach him properly.
BY MR KAl SER

Q Question -- and this is reading fromthe
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transcri pt of your deposition.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar, do you have a
problen? Do you want to |l ook at it before he does?

MR, KOLAR: 1'd like to know the page and |ine.

MR. KAI SER: Page 58, Line 15 through 20.

BY MR KAl SER:

Q Question, "And did he" --

MR, KOLAR: bjection, not inmpeaching. Before he
reads it in the record, if you can take a ook at it, |
think he just answered consistently with the deposition
testi nony.

BY MR. KAl SER:

Q Al right. My | refresh your recollection
as to what M. Voigt told you --

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Hold on, M. Kaiser.

MR, KOLAR: (Obj ection, asked and answer ed.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: | think --

MR, KOLAR: Page 58, Line 15.

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Let's go off.

(Di scussion off the record.)
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HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kaiser, | don't see
howit's any different but 1'mgoing to allow you to
make an offer of proof if you like.

MR. KAISER |'IIl offer to refresh his
recol | ection.

BY MR KAl SER

Q You have just told us now, M. Byrnes, this
norni ng that you don't recall whether Jack Voigt told
you that LTD s docks on occasion operated until 2:30
a.m, do you recall saying "l don't rememnmber if he said
that"?

A Yes.

Q Al right. Now, | want to show you Page 58
of your deposition transcript where | asked essentially
that same question.

A Yes.

Q And if you'd look there at Lines 15 through
20 and let nme know if that refreshes your recollection
as to what M. Voigt told you?

A. It refreshes ny recollection of my answer to
the question that you phrased to ne.

Q But it doesn't refresh your recollection with

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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respect to what M. Voigt told you?

A

Q

No.

Now, did M. Voigt ever tell you that with

sonme regularity semitractors and their trailers arrive

at the LTD facility before 6 a.m in the norning?

A No.

Q No, he didn't tell you that, did he?

A No.

Q Do you feel there is a significant
difference -- well, strike that.

Now, one of the sources of information that

you relied on was information you obtained fromthe

Townshi p Assessor's O fice, is that right?

A

Q

Deerfield

That's right.

And you went over -- is that the west
Townshi p Assessor's O fice?

Yes.

And you went to that office in person, didn't

Yes.

And you had them pull out these property

record cards, right?

A

Q

Yes.

And you pulled out sone tax maps so you could
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see where those parcels of real estate were located in
relation to one another, correct?

A That's right.

Q And you | ooked at the entire subdivision in
which the Roti, Weber and Rosenstrock residences are
| ocated, correct?

A Yes.

Q And you | ooked at the assessed val ue of every
parcel of real estate within that subdivision, did you
not ?

A Yes.

Q And with one exception, the Wst Deerfield
Townshi p assessor assessed the val ue of the parcels
within the entire subdivision --

MR, KOLAR: Objection, relevance, assessnent.

MR. KAISER: It's one of the bases he relied on

MR, KOLAR: He didn't say he relied on assessnent.
Assessnent is sone assessor's note of a percentage of
fair market value and it often has nothing to do with
fair market val ue even though the statute may indicate
an assessnent should be one third of fair market val ue

or sonetinmes counties have an ordinance that it should
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he's going to offer what the assessor does in terns of
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assessnent, he should have called the assessor
Assessnent is conpletely different than fair nmarket
val ue.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kai ser.

MR. KAISER: M. Kolar knows that in the course of
M. Byrnes' deposition we spent al nbst an hour going
over the assessed val ue of these properties and certain
concl usions M. Byrnes drew or couldn't draw on the
basis of that assessnment and he's kept that out of the
di rect exam nation because he knows it's harnful to
LTD.

MR. KOLAR It doesn't nake it rel evant because he
asked hi m questions at his deposition about assessnent.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: | agree. M. --

MR, KAISER: Oh, absolutely does. Absolutely
does, M. Knittle. H's argunent that he's getting paid
175 an hour to put in front of the Board is that the

properties on the peripheral of the -- the periphery of
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t he subdivision are | ess valuable than the properties
in the center and north. That's his argunent, that
because they're | ocated next to these inharnonious |and
uses, to borrow M. Byrnes' expression fromthe
deposition, that they're less valuable. Now I think

it's highly relevant whether the Township assessor
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consi ders these parcels | ess val uable.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: | wasn't di sagreeing
with you on rel evance. Wat | want to know, M.
Kai ser, is -- and, sir, your |ast nane again?

THE W TNESS: Byr nes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Byrnes, what did
you -- you pulled the assessor's cards?

THE W TNESS: Property record cards, yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Property record cards.

M. Kaiser, what | wanted to know i s whet her

or not he covered this on his direct examnation, if it
was in fact beyond the scope of the direct exam nation.

MR. KAI SER: Yeah, he covered it. He said he went

to the office and he pulled these cards, and these were
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part of the basket of information he put together to
eval uate this hypothesis that he tested.

MR. KOLAR: It's relevant and the reason is
because in Illinois you have -- the statute says
assessnment should be one third of fair market val ue but
in fact they're not. That's why we have things called
township nultipliers and state nultipliers because you
have variances across the county which requires the
county officials to apply a nultiplier onto assessnent

totry to bring themup to what the statute says they
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should be. And then on top of that, the state tries to
equal i ze assessnments throughout the state by use of a
state equalizer. So what I'mtelling you is the
objection is not assessnents are not rel evant because
nore often than not assessnents are not one-third of
fair market value as the assessed -- as they're
supposed to be by statute. And that's because you

m ght have an assessor who hasn't had a chance to get

t hrough that subdivision in a nunber of years or

because of a whole nultitude of factors. So we're
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talking fair market value in his opinion, and | think

it's irrelevant to bring in what the assessor has in

terns of assessments for these

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE:

particul ar properties.

M. Kol ar, he based his

opinion in part on what the assessed val ues of these

properties were.

Correct, sir?

THE WTNESS: | believe what | said, and | hope

didn't msstate it, is, one of the sources of

information that | consulted was the assessor's

property record cards so that |

the lots were devel oped. Al so,

knew hi storically when

| did review in one of

nmy files, which M. Kaiser |ooked at in ny deposition

was a listing of the assessor's indicated fair market

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

value of the lots, the land only for all the lots

wi thin the subdivision. And that is something we

tal ked about at ny deposition

And | considered it,

but I wouldn't say that it was sonmething that | based

my opinion on if | can nmake that distinction.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE:

I"mgoing to overrule

1328
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the objection, M. Kolar.
M . Kai ser, go ahead.
MR KAI SER: Thank you.
BY MR. KAI SER
Q Just to get back on track here, you went to

the West Deerfield Township Assessor's O fice, correct?

A Yes.

Q You pull ed these property cards, right?

A That's right.

Q You pulled the tax map, right?

A Yes.

Q You | ooked at the valuation the assessor had

given to every lot within the subdivision in which the
Roti, Weber and Rosenstrock honmes are |ocated, correct?
A Yes.
Q And you noted that, with one exception, the
West Deerfield Townshi p assessor assigned the identica

value to all the property within that subdivision,

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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correct?

A To all the lots, yes.
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Q Al the lots in that subdivision
And that was -- if I'mrecalling correctly --
the assessed val ue was 90, 000, right?
A The assessed val ue was about $98, 000.
Q $98, 000.
That 98, 000, that was the assessed val ue for
t he Weber property, right?
Ri ght .
And for the Rosenstrock property, right?
Yes.

And for the Roti property, correct?

> o » O >

Yes.

MR, KOLAR: Objection, relevance and foundati on.
You get a new assessnent every year, so he's just
saying for this assessnent, for this assessnent, for
this assessnent without any reference to a year
BY MR KAl SER

Q Do you recall, M. Byrnes, what year you
| ooked at?

A Since ny investigation was done at the
Assessor's Office | believe in April of 1999, the

rel evant tax year probably would have been 1998.

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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Q And you | ooked at lots located in the
interior of the subdivision, did you not?

A Yes.

Q And t he assessor had assigned the val ue of
$98, 000 for those lots, correct?

A Yes.

Q And you | ooked at |ots within the subdivision
| ocated cl oser to Tel egraph Road and cl oser to the
center part of Lake Forest, right?

A Yes.

Q And t he assessor has assigned the value to
those lots of $98,000, correct?

A I'"msorry, you're asking about lots which are
no |l onger |ocated within the subject subdivision?

Q No, within the subject subdivision

A Then the answer is yes, they are uniformon

all those |ots.

Q Now, this MAI certification, is that -- what
is that?
A That's a designation given by a private

apprai sal organi zation which is called the Appraisa
Institute. And it's given after taking a nunmber of
courses, submitting experience credits, and witing a

denonstration apprai sal and passing a conprehensive
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exam They then grant that professional designation of

MAI .

Q And do you have that?

A No, | don't.

Q VWhen was the last time you tal ked to Jack
Voi gt ?

A In 1999.

Q Do you know whet her the construction of LTD s
facility in Aurora actually reduced noise em ssions
fromLTD s dock areas during the fall of 19997

A | don't know.

Q After talking with M. Voigt you concl uded
that the increase in dock operations at the LTD
facility in Bannockburn was but a tenporary phenonmenon
and that you didn't foresee it would go on into the
future, was that the conclusion you drew from your
conversation with M. Voigt sone tine in 19997

A M. Voigt, yes, basically told me that -- and
| believe it may have been in the context of overtine,
but generally the conversation | had with himindicated
that any of the extra overtinme pressures that were
| eading to these later hours would be relieved by the

Aurora facility.
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know whet her that Aurora facility relieved any of these
overtinme pressures on the LTD Bannockburn facility
during the fall and winter of 1999, do you?

MR, KOLAR: bj ection, asked and answered.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE:  Sust ai ned.

BY MR KAl SER:

Q Did M. Voigt ever tell you that the LTD
Bannockburn facility, once the Aurora facility was up
and running, would scale back to only one shift a day?

A No.

MR, KAISER: | have no further questions. Thank
you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Redirect, M. Kol ar.

MR. KOLAR: Yes. Thank you.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR. KOLAR

Q M. Byrnes, the designation MAI, that neans

Menber Appraisal Institute, correct?

A Yes.
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Q And people who are currently MAIs are menbers
of the Appraisal Institute?

A Yes.

Q And they're the ones who set the courses and

other requirenments for people |ike you who want to
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beconme part of this group, right?

A. That's right.

Q And you're in the process of doing that?

A Yes. Technically I"'midentified as an
associ ate nmenber which is not given, you know, a letter
or abbreviation type designation like the MAl.

Q And you're followi ng the normal progression
that a person who wanted to beconme an MAI follows to be
an MAI, correct?

A Yes.

Q Now, you told us that you have testified
before | ocal boards of review throughout the collar
county area, correct?

A. Yes.

Q And you have testified before the Illinois
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Property Tax Appeal Board, correct?

A Yes.

Q And that's where people cone before Boards of

Revi ew or the Property Tax Appeal Board and say, "MW

assessnment is too high because it doesn't accurately

reflect the fair market value of the property,

f or

exanple, right?

MR. KAI SER:  Obj ection, |eading.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE:  Sust ai ned.

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

Can you rephrase, M. Kol ar.

BY MR. KOLAR:

Q In your experience people cone before the

Board of Review or the Property Tax Appeal Board and

conpl

ain that their assessnment is too high, right?
A Yes.

Q So based on your know edge the Rotis, the

Rosenstrocks and the Webers, if they really believe

t hat

their property value was depressed because of

operations of the LTD property, they, |ike anybody

el se,

woul d have the right to file an assessed
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val uation conplaint with the Lake County Board of
Revi ew and nmake that argunent, right?

MR. KAI SER: Obj ection, |eading.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE:  Sust ai ned.
BY MR. KOLAR:

Q To your know edge do the Rotis, the Webers
and the Rosenstrocks have the right here in Lake
County, Illinois to file assessed val uation conplaints
regardi ng their assessnments?

MR. KAI SER: Obj ection, foundation.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar, any response?

MR, KOLAR:  No.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Foundati on how, M.

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

Kai ser, his know edge --

MR. KAISER: | nean, we could put M. Kolar on the
stand, and | think he could qualify as an expert in
this area. | don't know that M. Byrnes knows a thing
about it other than what M. Kol ar's spoonfeeding him
this nmorning in the form of |eading questions.

MR. KOLAR | thought | heard a foundation
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obj ecti on.

MR, KAISER: Yeah, it is because you're trying to
give himthe foundation through a | eading inproper
questi on.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: | think the question
probably was | eading and | would sustain on that. But
I think this witness has been well qualified to answer
this type of question. So | would allow these
gquestions to go forward but in a nonleading fashion
BY MR KOLAR:

Q Have you ever testified regarding the
assessnent of a property where a property owner said
there is a negative influence that affects the val ue of
my property?

A Well, yes, actually every tinme | have worked
for a tax payer who's protesting their assessnment, they

have al ways said that there is sone factor that the

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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assessor hasn't recognized that's a negative on their

val ue and should push it | ower.

Q And based on -- have you worked in Lake
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County in terms of assessed val ue?
You have assessed valuation conplaints in

Wnst one, right?

A Yes.

Q That's Lake County?

A Yes.

Q So have you appeared before the Lake County

Board of Review?

A Yes.

Q Have you appeared before the Illinois
Property Tax Appeal Board concerni ng Lake County
properties?

A No.

Q So do you have a knowl edge as to generally
how t he system works if a person believes his
assessnents is too high?

A Yes, | do.

Q So, for exanple, if the Rotis tell me -- if
the Rotis believe that LTD Commdities, the operations
fromLTD Commopdities depresses the value of their

property, based on your understandi ng of the process,

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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can they file an assessed val uation conplaint and nake
t hat argument?

A Yes.

Q And if Rosenstrock believes that his property
is depressed by LTD operations, he could do that as
wel | ?

Yes.

Sanme for the Webers, correct?

> O »

Yes.

Q And then if they prevail, and you went and
| ooked at the assessor's records, we would see a | ower
assessnment for the land of the Roti, Rosenstrock and
Weber properties relative to the other lots in the
subdi vi sion, correct?

MR, KAISER: (Objection, calls for speculation.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: | think the specul ation
is inherent in the question. You said if they wi n?

MR. KOLAR Right.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Based on that
assunption, | don't think there is any specul ation, so
overrul ed.

THE W TNESS: Based on what | would represent to
you is ny considerable experience with property tax

matters in Illinois, the results of property tax
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appeals, the likely result of any of the conpl ainants
Wi nni ng such a hypot hetical appeal would be a reduced
assessment either of their |and assessnent, the
i mprovenent assessnment or both components. But, at any
rate, their total assessment woul d be reduced.
BY MR, KOLAR:

Q If you win, your assessnent is reduced,
that's a fact, right?

A. Yes.

Q Do you have any know edge of in the last five
years the Rotis, the Rosenstrocks, the Wbers filing an

assessed valuation conplaint with the Lake County Board

of Revi ew?
A No.
Q Now, in terms of your fee for this hearing,

you kind of in effect appeared twi ce, correct?
A That's right.
Q You thought you were going to testify in
November 1999, right?
Yes.
You prepared at that tinme, correct?

Yes, | did.

o > O >

You were geared up to testify?
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Q And you set the file down, correct?

A Yes.

Q You had to gear up again here in May 1999,
correct?

A Year 2000.

Q May 2000. You had to gear up again in My
2000 for the hearing, correct?

A That's right.

Q Now, you nentioned on direct then with M.
Kai ser that in your experience there is a class of
people who will come to the Roti, the Rosenstrock and

the Weber property, ook at the tollway and the

i nfluences to the south and either say "I'll buy the
property” or "I won't," right?

A Yes, that was a mmjor distinction that |
made.

Q So the Rotis, the Rosenstrocks and the
Webers, based on your understandi ng of the chronol ogy

of events here, fit into the class of people who knew
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of the tollway, |ooked to the south and bought the
| ots?
A Yes.
Q And based on your review of the record, only

the Rotis have listed their property for sale since

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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they acquired it, correct?

A To the best of my know edge that's right.

Q M. Kaiser went into great detail regarding
the ' 95 expansion and trucki ng operations, do you know
if M. Hara testified in this hearing that there were
ni ghttime trucki ng operations before 1990 when M.
Voi gt started working at the property, do you know what
he said in that regard?

A No, | don't.

Q Do you know if M. Voigt testified that there
were nighttinme truck operations in 1994 before the '95
expansi on?

A | don't know how he testified on that.

Q If those things were true, would that be

further support for your opinion regarding this case?
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A. No, it wouldn't change my opinion.

Q In terns of |ooking at M. Rosenstrock's
transcri pt, when he was asked if this property had
appreci ated, and he said, as M. Kaiser indicated, "I
hope so," you read that question and read that answer,
correct?

A. That's right.

Q And did you | ook at that testinony by M.

Rosenstrock relative to his allegation that LTD

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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"depresses the val ue of conpl ainants' properties"?

A Yes.

Q And that was the hypothesis that you were
testing, correct?

A Yes.

Q So that was information you thought was
relevant to testing the allegation by the conplai nants?

A. Yes, | certainly wanted to see what they had
to say about it.

Q You felt fromthat testinony that M.

Rosenstrock was at | east not consistent with this



12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

al | egation?

A Yes, | felt it was inconcl usive.

Q When you have been out to the street that the

conpl ainants live on have you heard tollway noise?
A Yes.
MR. KAI SER:  Obj ection, beyond the scope.
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE:  Sust ai ned.
MR, KOLAR: | don't have anything else.
MR, KAISER: Briefly redirect.
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Yes, recross.

MR. KAI SER:  Yes, recross.

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

RECROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MR KAl SER
Q Now, you have just told the Board that you
have substantial experience and even expertise in
property tax assessnent challenges, is that right?

A Yes.

Q You told us that if the Rotis, Wbers and M.
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Rosenstrock felt that LTD s dock operations were
depressing the value of their property, they could go
to the assessor, right?

A | believe they have that |egal right, yes.

Q But you woul dn't expect themto get any
relief fromthe assessor, would you?

A I don't know how the assessor would react,
al though I did ask himspecifically about that
hypot heti cal .

Q Well, you have told us that LTD s dock
operations even operating 20 hours a day, don't depress
the value of the Roti, Weber or Rosenstrock hones,
isn't that right?

A What | said was that under the preexisting
conditions that the presence of LTD was one of the
depreciative factors, along with the tollway, the other

commercial uses and the | ocation of the far sout hwest

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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part of Lake Forest.

Q Did the preexisting conditions include LTD

dock operations five and a half days a week for 20
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hours a day for five nonths, is that the preexisting
condi tion?

MR, KOLAR: (bjection, misstates the record
regardi ng LTD operations.

THE WTNESS: What |'msaying is that --

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Hold on, sir.

THE WTNESS: |'msorry.
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: |'m going to overrule
and take that in terns of a hypothetical. | can't

recall what the record states, M. Kolar, at this
point. W have cone back and forth on it a nunber of
times and | don't think the record is entirely clear --

MR, KAISER: | certainly can, and | think I
formul ated that accordance with what the proofs have
been so far.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: |I'"mgoing to allow the
guestion to stand.

THE WTNESS: Can | hear the question again.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Can you read it back

(Record read as requested.)

THE WTNESS: | guess | would have to ask you to

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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further explain that question in terms of preexisting
to what date or just generally preexisting?

BY MR. KAl SER

Q Well, weren't you saying the docks were added
in 19877
A Yes.

Q Al right. That's the preexisting condition

right?
A Ri ght .
Q That's the baseline, right?
A Yes.

Q Not hi ng since 1987 has affected or further
depreci ated the value of the Roti, Wber or
Rosenstrock' s residences, right?

A As | answered, there was substantia
depreciation fromthose preexisting factors and, yes,
what' s happened since then has not added to the

depreciation for market val ue.

Q Has not added in any way, correct?
A. Not from a market val ue point of view
Q Perhaps from a noi se nui sance, perhaps from

an ability to use and enjoy your property it mght have

affected it, right?

A | don't know.



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292

1345

Q Now, when this prospective buyer cones, |ooks
at either the Weber, Roti or Rosenstrock residences and
observes the tollway to the west, Corporate 100 to the
south, and LTD s dock operations, do you think that
prospective purchaser makes an assunption that LTD will
conduct its operations in accordance with Illinois
state | aw?

A Well, | would assume that if a buyer posed
that question to thenself, and | think only a mnority
of buyers woul d actually pose the question to
t hensel ves in that manner, but if they did, I would
assune, yes, that they would think that they would
operate legally.

Q Wth that be a full hearty assunption that

LTD woul d operate within the bounds of state |aw here

in lllinois?
A No.
Q That woul d be a fair assunption, right?
A Yes.
Q So to the extent that Leslie Wber thought

LTD woul d operate its dock in conpliance with Illinois
state law, that was a fair assunption she nmade, wasn't
it?

MR. KOLAR  Cbjection to the question. It's
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basically assuming that LTDis violating Illinois state
l aw and that hasn't been determ ned at all
MR, KAISER: | think that's been -- there is anple
support for that in the record.
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: | think that's what
we're here to decide.
MR. KOLAR | didn't know M. Kaiser made that
determination. That's ny objection
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: "Il allow the question
to stand, but | will note for the record that there has
been no determination to the best of ny know edge that
LTD is in violation of any state laws at this point.
BY MR. KAI SER
Q Do you recall the question?
Yes, | do.
And | never thought of the question in
exactly those ternms, whether Ms. Weber particularly
t hought that LTD woul d operate a | egal operation. But
I can tell you that | would think that any of the

conpl ai nants, and in fact any property owner, would be
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fair to assune that any adjacent

| egal ly.
MR. KAl SER

guesti ons.

L. A

HEARI NG OFFI
any re-redirect?
MR. KOLAR

HEARI NG OFFI

Thank you. | have no further

REPORTING (312) 419-9292

CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar, do you have

No.

CER KNI TTLE: Sir, | thank you very

much for your tinme. You can step down.

THE W TNESS:

HEARI NG OFFI

HEARI NG OFFI

Thank you.

CER KNI TTLE: Let's go off the record.

(Short break.)

CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar, your

witness is on the stand.

MR KCOLAR:
real tor.

HEARI NG OFFI
pl ease.

Yes, we call Marcia Row ey,

CER KNI TTLE: Can you swear

(Wtness sworn.)

MARCI A ROALEY,

a

her

use woul d be operated

next

in,
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called as a witness herein, having been first duly
sworn, was exam ned and testified as foll ows:
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR KOLAR:
Q Can you state your name for the record
pl ease?
A. Mar ci a Rowl ey.

Q And what do you do for a |iving?

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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A I"'ma realtor with Cal dwel | Banker.
Q And would it be correct that you're a
sal esperson?
A Yes, a sal es associate.
And you work under sone brokers |icense?
Yes, | do.
Are you licensed by the State of Illinois?
Yes, | am
Where is your office | ocated?
280 East Deerpath in Lake Forest.

Where do you live?

> 0 » © » O » O

In Lake Forest.
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Q How | ong have you lived in Lake Forest?

A 18 years.

Q Do you have a business adm nistration degree
from Kansas?

A. Yes, | do.

Q How | ong have you been a realtor?

A. Al nost ni ne years.

Q Do you take listings outside of Lake Forest?
A In Lake Bluff | do.

Q So in terns of where you handle real estate

listings that would be what?

A. 99 percent Lake Forest.

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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Q And then sonme in Lake Bl uff?

A Lake Bl uff, yes.

Q And at one point were you working as a
sal esperson for the Anthony and Karen Roti property on
Wedgewood i n Lake Forest?

A Yes, | was.

Q How many |istings did you have, do you

recal | ?
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A At that point in tine?
Q That's a vague question. 1'Il withdraw that.

Let me show you Respondent's Exhibits 8 and

9. I'Il showyou 9 first. Wat do you recognize 9 to
be?

A The listing agreement.

Q For the Roti property?

A Yes.

Q And this one is dated when?

A June 1, '96.

Q Then what do you recogni ze Exhibit 8 to be?

A. Al so the renewal |isting agreenent.

Q For the Roti property?

A Yes.

Q I should have nunmbered those differently,

but, all right, so Exhibit 9 is the first listing and

L.A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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then Exhibit 8 is a renewal ?
A Yes because it was for 90 days and then this
shoul d have been about six nonths, yes, for 180 days.

Q So when you say "90 days,"” you were pointing
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to the first listing, Exhibit 9?

A
Q
A
Q

price or

o > O >

be?

Q
wanted to

A

Correct.

And t hen the second one was 180 days?
Correct.

Ilt's alittle hard to read

On Exhibit 9, the first listing, the market
isting price is?

695.

And then on the second one we have what ?
674.

Who decided on what the listing price should

M. Roti.
And did M. or Ms. Roti tell you why they
sell their honme, do you recall?

Basically what | renenber it as being that

t hey wanted nore space.

Q
A

Q

Do they have children, if you recall?
Yes.

The nunber of children?

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292

1351



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

A Four or five.

Q During the tinme that you were working with
the Rotis as their realtor trying to sell their house
did either of themever say to you that LTD i s noisy at
night fromfall until Christms tine?

A | don't recall that.

Q Did either of themever say to you LTD s
noi se prevents themfromfalling asleep at night?

A No, | don't recall that statement.

Q Did either of themtell you that LTD s noise
wakes them at night?

A | never recall a conversation |ike that.

Q Did either of themtell you that LTD

operations shake their home?

A I don't recall a conversation like that.
Q You were at the Roti property?
A Yes.
Q You | ooked it over, | assume, right?
A Yes.
Q Did you hear noise when you were at the Rot
property?
A Noi se?
Yes.
A | heard noi se.

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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Q Do you recall hearing truck noise?
No.
Q Woul d you characterize what you heard as j ust

noi se but you weren't able to really distinguish
whet her it was tollway noise, office building noise or
LTD operati on noise?

MR, KAI SER: bj ection, |eading.

MR, KOLAR: |'Ill withdraw that question
BY MR. KOLAR:

Q Were you able to determ ne where the noise
was conming fromthat you heard?

A. I can tell you what | thought the noi se was.
Is that answering the question? Is that what --

Q Let me ask you this question. Could you
di stinguish --

MR KAISER: Can we get a foundation as to when
she was there, whether it was daytine, nighttine, which
season, what year?

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar, do you nind
aski ng those questions?

MR. KOLAR: That's fine.

BY MR. KOLAR:
Q So the record is clear, the first listing,

Respondent's Exhibit 9, was for 90 days begi nni ng what
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day?

A Technically the date ny broker signed it,
June 3rd.

Q So you had a listing for 90 days from June 3,

1996, right?

A Uh- huh.

Q Yes?

A Yes.

Q And then a 180 day listing from Septenber 19,
19967

A Correct.

Q Were you at the Roti property on sumer days?

A Yes.

Q Were you able to hear noise on days in the

sumrer in 19967
A Yes.
Q Was it really bad during the sunmer?
MR. KAI SER:  Obj ecti on.

BY MR KOLAR:

Q How woul d characterize it in the sumrer?
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A Well, in the sumrer the w ndows are open, so
you woul d hear nore noise inside, but you really didn't
hear anythi ng unl ess you were outside.

Q Do you recall being there on some nice summer

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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days at the Roti property?

A Yes.

Q And do you have a specific recollection of
what the noise was |ike on the nice summer days?

A It depended. It was different each tine |
was there. Sonme days it was quieter than other days
when it was -- the noise was louder. It also depended
on what way the wi nd seemed to be bl ow ng too.

Q Did you hear noise with wi ndows cl osed?

MR. KAI SER:  Obj ection, foundation.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE:  Sust ai ned.

BY MR KOLAR:

Q Were you in the Roti house at tinmes when the
wi ndows were cl osed?

A Yes.

Q Were you able to hear noise with the w ndows
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cl osed?

A No, not that | recall
Q And at sone point did you make a report --
strike that.

Were you able to sell the Roti house?
A No.
Q At some point did you report to them feedback

you received from brokers and/or buyers as to their

L.A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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property?

A Yes, after every two or three show ngs that
we woul d have, | would call them and give them feedback
on -- after I was able to get ahold of the other

agents, sonetinmes it would be the same day, sonetines
it would be several days later, | would give them
f eedback on what the agents told me why the people
didn't -- what they thought about the house.

Q Do you recall then giving what you woul d
classify as drawbacks to the Rotis concerning selling
their house?

A Yes.
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Q What drawbacks did you tell themin ternms of
f eedback?

A. Ckay. The ones that | can renenber today
were the -- okay, the size of the famly room was
smal |, how the house was placed on the lot, that it was
not centered on the lot, it was all side yard, no
backyard, and noise. Those are the three that cone to
m nd right now

Q And the noise that was -- strike that.

The things you just nentioned, those were
things reported to you that you reported to the Rotis?

A Yes.

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

Q Do you recall if anybody reported to you the
| ocation of the Roti house as being in the southwestern

corner of Lake Forest as being an issue?

A You nean geographically away fromthe center?

Q Ri ght .

A Right now | can't renenber. | don't recall
They might have. | don't remenber.

Q Let me show you Page 28 of your deposition
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transcript starting at Line 17. Read that answer to
yourself and then tell nme when you're done to see if
that refreshes your recollection.

(Pause in proceedings.)

THE W TNESS: That's al nost what | just said.
BY MR. KOLAR:

Q So do you recall reporting to the Rotis that
there were comments that their house was | ocated in the
sout hwest corner of Lake Forest?

A. Yes, |'msure --

MR. KAl SER: Excuse nme, M. Knittle, are we
offering this for the truth of the matter asserted,

t hese hearsay second and thirdhand hearsay statenents
or what is the basis? | guess |'m objecting as
hear say.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Obj ecting as hearsay

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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how, her statenments to the Rotis?
MR, KAISER: This witness is about to tell us what
she heard from brokers who heard it from peopl e once

renmoved there, prospective purchasers. So we're
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heari ng doubl e hearsay at this point.

MR. KOLAR: The question, which she was answering,
was, "What did you tell the Rotis regarding drawbacks
to selling their honme?"

MR. KAI SER:  Which | have no problem That's a
perfectly fine question. But what did these people
say, as if this secondhand/thirdhand reporting of what
they said can be reliable in any way, | object.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Yeah, | don't think
that's before us right now though based on this
guesti on.

MR, KAISER: All right. | mean, | think M. Kol ar
can ask a question that's not objectionable.

MR, KOLAR: | think | have done that quite a bit
in this hearing.

MR, KAISER: You certainly have, M. Kol ar.

MR, KOLAR: Thank you.

BY MR. KOLAR:
Q "Il break it down.

Ms. Rowl ey, do you recall telling the Rotis

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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that the drawback in selling their hone was that there
was a snmall backyard and a relatively |large side yard?
A Yes.
Q In this Exhibit 9 here, do you recognize from

an aerial perspective the Roti house here, can you see

that far?
A. Yes, | can see that far.
Q And so this area to the east is the side yard

you' re tal king about?

A. Yes.

Q And do you recall, in terns of drawbacks you
told the Rotis, that another one was their home was
| ocated in the southwest corner of Lake Forest away
fromthe central town area?

A Correct.

Q Do you recall as a drawback that sonme of the
anenities inside the honme were a probl enf

A It had a snaller famly roombut that was it.

Q Anyt hi ng regardi ng bat hroons?

It would have been nice to have another

famly bathroom upstairs. There was only two ful
bat hs upstairs.

Q In your experience how many baths do peopl e

| ooki ng for honmes in Lake Forest expect with a house

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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the size of the Rotis?

A Well, they would like to have three fanmily
bat hr oons upstairs.

Q In terns of your personal experience at the
Roti property how often did you hear noise?

A Well, just about the majority of the tine
when you woul d go on the property you could hear noise.

Q Coul d you tell us where the noise cane from

that you renenber hearing?

A I --

Q Yes or no? | think you to have answer that
question, then I'll ask you anot her

A Yes, | can try. | can tell you where |I'm

assuming it was com ng from yes.

Q Well, 1'm asking back at the tine when you
were there in '96 did you know where the noi se was
coming fromthat you heard?

A Yes.

Q Well, as you recall you gave your deposition

in March 1999, correct?

A Uh- huh.

Q Ri ght ?

A Yes.

Q And you don't have a copy of your transcript,

1359



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

right?
A | have never seen a copy of it.
Q So you don't remenber exactly what you said

in that transcript, right? |Is that accurate?

A Yes, that's accurate. | nean, hopefully it
woul d be the sane answers that 1'Il give you today.
Q | understand. [|'mnot staying you' re doing

anyt hi ng i nproper.
As of -- strike that.
March 19, 1999, that sounds |ike about the
date that you gave your deposition?
A Yes.

Q Okay. And as of the date of the deposition

were you able in your mind to distinguish between noise

that would conme fromthe office building to the south,
noi se that m ght be coming fromthe LTD facility, and
noi se that was comng fromthe tollway?

A Was | asked that question?

Q Do you recall if you were asked that

guestion?

A I don't think I was ever asked that question.
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22 Q Let me show you Page 37 starting at Line 15
23 Read Line 15 to the end there and see if you recal

24 bei ng asked that question by M. Kaiser
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1 (Pause in proceedings.)

2 BY MR. KOLAR

3 Q I's your nenory now refreshed?

4 A Yes.

5 Q You were asked that question?

6 A Okay.

7 Q Right?

8 A Yes, | was.

9 Q So as of the date of your deposition you
10 coul d not distinguish between where the noi se was
11 com ng fromthat you heard on the Roti property,
12 correct?

13 A. Correct, because it was noise. | didn't go
14 | ook to see where the noise was com ng from

15 Q It was just noise?

16 A It was just noise.

17 Q It was just |oud?
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A Very loud at tines.
Q And it was just noise and it was just loud in

the sumrer nonths of June and July 19967

A Yes.

Q August 19967?

A August, right.

Q It just seened to be | oud whenever you were

L.A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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t here?

MR. KAI SER:  Obj ecti on.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Yes, M. Kai ser.

MR. KOLAR: 1'Ill withdraw that question

I don't have any further questions for Ms.

Rowl ey. Thank you.

THE W TNESS:  Uh- huh

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Ms. Kaiser -- M.
Kai ser, do you have cross exam nation?

MR, KAI SER: Yes. Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: | didn't mean to slur
your masculinity there, M. Kaiser.

MR. KOLAR: Actually I had one nore question.
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said | didn't, but --

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kaiser, do you
object to letting M. Kolar have one nobre go here?

MR. KAI SER:  No.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Go ahead, M. Kol ar.

BY MR KOLAR:

Q As you sit here today do you recall Tony Roti
ever saying to you, Marcia or Ms. Rowey, do | need to
di scl ose noise to any of these prospective buyers?

A I never recall having any kind of

conversation like that with Tony.
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MR, KOLAR: Thank you. | don't have anything
el se.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kai ser.

MR. KAl SER:  Thank you.

CROSS EXAM NATI ON

BY MR, KAl SER:

Q About how many tines did you talk with Tony
Rot i ?

A Maybe once.
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Q

May

During the course of that

don't recal

di scl ose to prospective purchasers the noise fromLTD s

dock area,
A
all.
Q

be once.

conversation you

whet her he asked you whether he had to

is that your testinony?

I d

Al

on't recall us having

right.

contradicting M. Roti

conver sati
A
Q
A.

on,

Den

are you?

ying that

Yes.

t hat conversation at

You' re not denying or

if he said that he had that

he said that to ne?

It was four years ago. |

ever saying that to ne.

Q

A

Q

Al

right.

So you don't

L. A. REPORTING (312)

No,

Al

| don't

right.

don't renmenber him

recall that?

419- 9292

recall himever saying that to

Do you recal

conversation you had with M. Rot

A

Yes.

how | ong this one

| ast ed?
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Q How long did it last?

A About 45 m nutes.

Q Where did it take place?

A At the hockey rink.

Q In which conmunity?

A Hi ghl and Par k.

Q Do you recall everything that was said

between you and M. Roti during that 45 nminute

conversation at the Hi ghland Park hockey rink?

A Every word, no.
Q Every subject that was discussed?
A. | renmenber the subject that -- | was giving

hi mthe market evaluation of his home there during
hockey practice or sonething during a gane.

Q Was one of your children engaged in hockey
practice?

A Bot h of our children.

Q Is it fair to say you were tal king business

and wat chi ng what was going on on the rink?

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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A We weren't watching what was goi ng on.
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Q You have seen enough hockey practices in your
life to --

A. Ri ght .

Q Al right. Oher than the sunmer nonths,
June, July, August, Septenber of 1996 have you ever
been out to the Roti residence?

A. During those --

Q You were there during those nonths, June,
July, August, Septenber of 19967
Yes.

Have you been there since then?
On the property?

Yes.

> © » O >

I have not actually been to their house since
| have lost the listing in March of '97.

Q March of '97 would have been the |ast tine?

A | have been in the area but not at their
house, right at their house.

Q Did you ever go back to their house or to the
area for the purposes of gathering nore information in
preparation for your deposition testinony or for the
heari ng today?

A Back to that property?

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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Q Yes.

A Not that | recall, no.

Q All right. During Septenber, Cctober
Novenber, Decenber of 1997 do you know what noise
level s were |ike at the Roti residence between the

hours of 6 p.m and 12 -- 11:59 p.m Monday through

Fri day?
A You said '97, | was never there in the fal
of '97.
Q So you have no information about noise |levels

at the Roti property during that time frame, 19977

A Not after March of '97.

Q And, simlarly, you have no information or no
ability to tell the Board anything about noise
conditions at the Roti property in 19987

A No.

Q And you can't tell the Board whether LTD was
noi sy or quiet during the fall and early wi nter of
1999, can you?

A No.

Q Do you have any reason to doubt or call into
guestion Karen Roti's testinony that LTD s dock
operations disturb her while she's in her home with the

wi ndows cl osed during the evening hours?
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A Say that again, please.

MR. KAI SER: Read that back

MR, KOLAR: Objection. [It's an inproper question
for her to | guess rule on the credibility of Karen
Roti's testinmony | think is what he's in fact doing.

MR, KAISER: Well, he asked the question: "D d
Karen Roti ever tell you it's noisy at night?" with the
i mplication being, and the argunent | can anticipate in
LTD s response brief, in 1996 when Karen Roti |isted
her house she never even told the realtor, it wasn't a
problemin '96.

Now Karen has told us it was loud in '96.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: | agree though with M.
Kolar. | don't knowif it's proper for this witness to
comment past whether or not she heard from Ms. Rot
whet her there was a noise a problem You're asking her
to specul ate whether there was a problemwi th Ms. Roti.
BY MR KAl SER

Q Ms. Row ey, did you ever ask Karen Rot
whet her noise from LTD s dock operations interfered

with her use and enjoyment of her property?

1367
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A. I had no reason to ever ask her about noise
fromthere.

Q So you never asked her?
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A | never asked her. | had no reason to ask
her .

Q During the course of your 45 mnute
conversation with Tony Roti did you ever ask him
whet her noise from LTD s dock operations interfered
with his use of enjoynent?

A I had no reason to ask himthat question.

Q So is your answer no that you never asked
t hent?

A | have never asked them about that noise from

LTD operati ons.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Can you hold on a
second, mm' anf?

THE W TNESS: Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Do you guys know who
this is?

MR, KOLAR: | don't know. Who is that?
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MR. KAISER M. Kracower, the witness for the
aft ernoon.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Sir, is your name M.
Kracower ?

MR. KRACOWER: Yes.

MR. KAISER W don't need to exclude him | have

no problem wi th him being here.

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Have a seat then, sir.
You can proceed, M. Kaiser. Sorry to
i nterrupt.
BY MR. KAl SER:

Q Have you ever driven up Lakeside Drive and
into the parking ot at the north end of LTD s dock
operations?

A No, never.

VWi ch part of Lake Forest do you live in?
| live east of 41.
And - -

Nort h of Westl ake.

o » O > O

And west of the railroad tracks?
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A
Q
Deer pat h.

A
Q
A
Q

war ehouse

A

Q

VWhich railroad tracks? There is three sets.

The Chicago Northwestern railroad tracks by

No, | live west of those tracks.

West of those tracks but east of Hi ghway 41?
Correct.

Thank you.

Have you ever lived in the vicinity of a

and | oadi ng dock operation?

No.

Have you ever shown property to people in the

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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vicinity of a warehouse and | oadi ng dock operation?

A
Q
A

Q

Specifically a warehouse and | oadi ng dock?
Yes.
Okay. Ask that question again.

Have you ever shown prospective purchasers

residential property which was in the vicinity of a

war ehouse
A.

Q

and dock operation?

| believe |I showed the Roti property.

Al right. Fair enough. So you showed that.
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But any others besides the Roti property?

A Not that | can imediately recall, no.

Q Now, you have been in real estate for nine
years, right?

A Uh- huh.

Q Do you think, on the basis of your nine years
experi ence, and over that course of the nine years --
wel |, how many people did you show the Roti hone to?

A Over 60.

Q And | take it -- and you ask the people and
try to get feedback fromthemas to what they |ike and
don't like about the hones, right?

A Ri ght .

Q And is it fair to say you have had thousands

of conversations over the last nine years with

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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prospective purchasers of residential property about
what they like and don't |ike?
A | don't know about thousands but hundreds.
Q Certainly hundreds?

A Yes.
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Q Al right. Based on your experience do you
have an opi nion as to whether a prospective purchaser
of sonebody like the Rotis' home would make a
di stinction between a | oadi ng dock that operated only
five days a week between the hours of 6 a.m and 4 p.m
and a | oadi ng dock which operated five and a half days
a week between the hours of 6 a.m and 1:30 or 2 a.m
in the norning?

MR, KOLAR: bj ection, beyond the scope.

THE WTNESS: It was a | ong question

MR. KAISER: Could you read it back, Madam Court
Reporter.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Let me check what he
tal ked about on the record.

(Pause in proceedings.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: | can't say for sure
whether it's beyond the scope. |I'mgoing to allow the
question. Maybe you could rmake it -- well, you can

read it back for her.

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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(Record read as requested.)
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HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Ma'am do you under st and

t hat question?

THE WTNESS: | think I do.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Okay. Answer to the

best of your ability.

THE WTNESS: To the best of ny ability in ny

opi ni on soneone who's | ooking at that house isn't going

to know, by looking at it, when it

operates. | nmean,

they're just going to see a building there. Al

they're going to see is a building.

BY MR. KAI SER

Q But if they were nade aware of the fact that

the dock, instead of closing at 3:30 or 4 in the

afternoon, ran a second shift, which continued unti

12:30, 1, 1:30 in the norning, continuous operation

between 6 a.m and 1 or 1:30 in the norning, do you

think that would make a difference

pur chaser ?

to a prospective

A Okay. In ny opinion it would, but I was

never made aware of any issues there. So if sonmeone

asked me | coul d never have told them because the Rotis

never told ne there was a problemthat | can recal

with loading facilities there.

L. A. REPORTING (312)

419-9292
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Q | understand. But, as | understood, your
testimony now is, yes, that informtion would rmake a
difference to a prospective purchaser?

A If I knewit and it was asked, | would have
to share it. Yes, it would make a difference.

Q And is it fair to say that the difference
woul d be the prospective purchaser would be less likely
to purchase the hone if they knew the dock was
operating from6 a.m in the morning until 1 or 2 a.m
the foll owi ng norning as opposed to a dock that they

knew woul d close at 3:30 or 4 in the afternoon?

A That's a tough question. | nmean --
Q I mean, | don't want to push you beyond where
you feel confortable. |If you don't have anything, then

we can just --

A You know, | can't -- I'msure if soneone
t hought it was going to run all night, it mght nmake
sonme i nfluence on whether they purchased the house, but
it al so depends on if the house was priced to reflect
t hat issue.

Q And the house woul d have to be reduced in
price, wouldn't it, to reflect the operations into the
ni ght and early norning?

A It should be. It should reflect it, but |
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did not know about those issues.

Q | understand. [|f you had known though --
it's a hypothetical question. |If you had known that
information, if in fact we denmonstrated through the
record here that LTD did operate from6 in the norning
until 1 or 2 in the norning, that's sonething that the
price should reflect, shouldn't it?

A Ri ght, but | never priced this house, M.
Roti priced this house.

Q | understand. |'msinply asking you that
that would be a factor that you would take into
consideration in pricing the house, wouldn't you?

A Yes.

Q And the way you would -- the effect it would
have on the price is that if LTD operated late into the
night and into the early norning, the price of the Rot
home should go down, right?

A Yes.

MR, KAI SER: Thank you. No further questions.

MR, KOLAR: | have a few questions.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
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BY MR. KOLAR:

Q So Ms. Rowey, as a realtor you rely on the
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sellers to be forthcom ng with you regarding the
anenities for their property and any maybe negative
i nfl uences?

A Correct.

Q And you were relying on the Rotis to be
forthcoming to you regardi ng any negative influences on
their property?

A Correct.

Q Wbul d you agree that, generally speaking,
when prospective buyers cone to the Roti house, you
could generally classify theminto two groups, you're
goi ng to have one group that says, "I may be willing to
live next to a truck operation, comrercial building and
a tollway" and another group will just say, "I don't
want anything to do with this |ocation"?

A I guess you could classify themthat way.

Q You woul d agree with that generally?

Yes.
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Q Woul d you agree that if the north half of the
LTD building, with all the truck docks that existed in
1987, and there was no home on the Roti property, the
Rosenstrock property or \Wber property, that at that
point in time the market would take into consideration

the presence of LTD in setting a value for those |ots?
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A Wait. It was there in '87?

Q Let me break it down. Assunme in 1987 we have
the tollway in existence, correct?

A Correct.

Q And in 1987 we have the north half of the LTD
building with all the truck docks in existence, okay?

A Okay.

Q And assune we have Corporate 100 with its
parking lot in existence, all right?

A Yes.

Q So then if we have a devel oper in Lake Forest
to the north that wants to subdivide this whole
property, at that point in tinme would you agree that

the market is going to take into consideration
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Corporate 100, LTD and the tollway in setting the val ue
of the lots closest to those influences?

A Yes.

Q And then that influence would be that the
lots closest to LTD, Corporate 100 and the tollway
woul d be worth less than | ots away fromthose
i nfluences?

MR. KAI SER:  Obj ection, |eading.

THE W TNESS: Correct.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: 1'd sustain that. She's

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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al ready answered but --

MR. KAISER So strike the answer.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: |s that what you're
asking, M? Kaiser.

MR KAI SER:  Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: | will grant your notion
to strike and ask M. Kolar to rephrase the question.
BY MR. KOLAR:

Q What woul d be the influence of LTD, Corporate

100 and the tollway on the lots imediately to the
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north in ternms of setting a price on those versus |lots

farther

A. The lots on the south side of Wedgewood woul d

north away from those infl uences.

be priced I ess than on the north side of Wedgewood or

further north.

In fact, in nmy market analysis | gave to M.
Roti, | had told himthat the houses on the north side
sell better that the houses on the south side.
Q Then that influence -- would that influence
continue on as long as -- strike that.

Rosenstrock, Weber

Woul d that inpact on the value of the Roti,

houses woul d that just continue on

into the future as long as you had a tollway, LTD and

Cor porate 1007?

M.

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292

A Yes, |

MR, KOLAR:

bel i eve so.

don't have anything el se.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Do you have any recross,

Kai ser ?

MR. KAl SER

Yes, briefly.

RECROSS EXAM NATI ON

1378
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BY MR KAl SER

Q Do you know whet her the West Deerfield
Townshi p assessor nmkes a di stinction when he or she
val ues properties within the -- is this the Gak Knol
subdi vi si on?

A I don't renmenber exactly.

Q Wt hin the subdivision in which the Roti,
Weber and Rosenstrock's hones are | ocated, do you know
whet her the West Deerfield Township assessor
di stingui shes in val ue between the hones | ocated south
of Wedgewood Drive and those | ocated north of Wedgewood
Drive?

A | don't know.

MR. KOLAR: bj ection, beyond the scope of ny
redirect.

MR, KAISER: W just heard about sale prices north
of Wedgewood, the value north of Wdgewood, it's

directly germane.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: 1'm going to sustain the

objection. | don't think we covered what the assessor
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feels or doesn't feel on redirect. W did not cover
that, M. Kaiser.

MR. KAI SER. We tal ked about, M. Knittle,
opi ni ons on val ue.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: We did tal k about this
wi t ness' views of value and nothing el se.
BY MR. KAI SER

Q Ms. Row ey, do you know whet her back in 1987
LTD operated the docks at the north end of its property
i n Bannockburn, I1llinois during Septenber, Cctober
Novenber and Decenber of 1987, five days a week unti
m dni ght or beyond?

A | don't know that answer.

Q And frankly you don't know really anything
about whether LTD s dock operations have increased or

decreased since 1987, do you know?

A I don't know anything about their operations.
MR. KAI SER:  Thank you. | have no further

guesti ons.
MR, KOLAR: | have no questions.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Thank you, nmm'am You

can step down.

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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MR, KOLAR: Thanks for your tine.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: W're going to go take a

| unch break.

Let's go off the record.

(Lunch break.)
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AFTERNOON SESSI ON

MR, KAISER: On the record, M. Kolar, still your
case.

MR. KOLAR: LTD would call Allen Kracower as a
W t ness.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Coul d you swear himin.

(Wtness sworn.)
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar.
Al'l en Kracower,
called as a witness herein, having been first duly
sworn, was exam ned and testified as foll ows:
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR. KOLAR:

Q Wul d you state your name for the record,
pl ease?
A Al'l en Kracower, K-r-a-c-o-w-e-r.

Where do you live?

| reside at 1111 El m Road, Lake Forest,

[11inois.
Q Is that east or west of 2947
A West -- it's unincorporated Lake Forest Post

O fice but west of 294.
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Q About how far fromthe LTD site as the way a

crow flies?
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A. As the way a crow flies |I would say somewhere

around three mles, if that.

Q How | ong have you lived in Lake County?
A I have lived in the county for approximtely
30 years.

Q What do you do for a l|iving?

A I'"'ma | and pl anni ng and zoni ng consul tant and
| andscape architect.

Q Where is your office | ocated?

A. 100 Lexington Drive, Buffalo Grove, Illinois.

Q What's the nanme of the conpany that you're
associ ated with?

A It is Allen L. Kracower & Associates, Inc.

Q That's you in the name?

A. My nane is in the nane, yes.

Q Okay. How many years has that firmbeen in
exi stence?

A | started the conpany approxi mately 30 years
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alittle over 30 years.

Q

How | ong have you been in the business of

| and pl anni ng consul tation?

A My whol e career spans a period of
approximately -- in the range of 36 years.
Q And you were hired by LTD Commodities

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292

concerning this noise conplaint, correct?

A

Q

Yes.

What's your hourly rate for working for LTD

Commpdi ti es?

A

Q

$285 per hour.

And is that consistent with the rate you

woul d charge other private clients?

A

Q

Yes.

I s your conpensation in any way contingent on

your testinony and participation in this case?

| ast

A

Q

No.

And you thought you were going to testify

Novenber, correct?

A

That's correct.
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Q And did you prepare at that time as though
you were going to testify in that first week of
Novenber ?

A Yes, | did.

Q Then you | earned that we weren't going to get

to you, correct?

A That's correct.

Q So did you have to prepare once again here in
May 20007?

A Yes.
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Q And as you sit here today do you know how
much you have charged LTD?

A No, | don't.

Q Regardl ess, it would include two preparations
because of the hearing being continued?

A That's correct.

Q And have you and | ever worked together on
anot her matter?

A Not that | recall. |It's been pleasurable

this time but | don't recall a previous occasion
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Q VWhat's your education after high school ?

A I have a Bachel or of science degree fromthe
University of Wsconsin, a mgjor in |andscape
architecture. And then | have another one, | have a
Mast er of science degree also fromthe University of
W sconsin. | forgot.

Q What's that one in?

A. That was a mixture of mmjors in planning.
The predoni nant one was still |andscape architecture.

Q What type of services do you provide as a
I and pl anner or through Allen L. Kracower & Associ ates?

A. They're relatively diverse. Qur office
provi des services to local |evels of government,

muni ci palities, counties in the area of conprehensive

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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pl anni ng, zoning, subdivision control. W review

devel opnent plans, when asked to, and render advice to
governnent generally in the area of regulatory controls
i nclusive of zoning. |In addition to that, then in the
private sector we work with buil ders, developers in

desi gni ng housi ng devel opnments or office devel opnents.
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There is a wide range of things ranging all the way to
gravel sites and landfill sites. Then, in addition to
that, we do real estate consulting advising normally
private property owners, financial institutions, and
trusts relative to the highest and best use of their
property. And then, lastly, we also have a very |large
| andscape architectural component.

Q You nentioned conprehensive plan, what is
that for the record?

A Conprehensive plan is a docunent undertaken
by a local |evel of government, like a village or a
city or a county, that sets forth its goals and its
aspirations as to what it wants to be, howit wants to
grow, the type of changes that it would like to see
take place. Their document is authorized under State
statute for local |levels of government in the State of
[11inois.

Q Can you recall every municipality you have

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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ever worked for in terns of as a |and planner or

consul tant ?
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Q

No, | cannot.

Do you have themlisted in your CV?

Yes, nost of them

Woul d these be municipalities that you have

wor ked for?

A.
Q
wor ked for

Bl oom ngdal e,

> o0 » 0 » © » O » O >» O >

Yes.

So woul d the municipalities that you have

i ncl ude Addi son,

Bat avi a, Bensenville,

Bl ue |Island and Boca Raton, Florida?

Those are sone of them yes.

And ot hers woul d i nclude Buffal o G ove?

Yes.

Burr Ri dge?

Yes.
Carpentersville?
Yes.

Ci cero?

Yes.

Darien, Illinois?
Yes.

Des Pl ai nes?

Yes.

L. A. REPORTING (312)

419-9292
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Q Let ne list a few nore before you say, "Yes.

Have you al so worked for Elk Grove Village,
Fox River Grove, Glberts, denview, Hanover Park,
Har wood Hei ghts, Hazel Crest, Hickory Hills, Hi ghland

Par k, Hi nsdal e?

A Yes to all of those.

Q Have you worked for the Illinois Attorney
General ?

A Yes.

Q In what capacity?

A As an expert in highest and best use study
and testinony in matters pertaining to eminent donmin
litigation.

Q Have you worked for the Du Page Airport

Aut hority?
A Yes.
Q Du Page County Illinois Regional Planning

Commi ssi on?

A Yes.

MR, KAI SER:  Obj ection, curulative.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar, do you have
any that you want to hit in particular?

MR, KOLAR: VeIl --

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: As far as | can tell
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we're only on "I."

MR, KOLAR: Okay. | don't need to go on.
BY MR KOLAR:

Q Besi des those have you worked from ot her
muni ci palities?

A Yes.

Q Appr oxi mately how many nunicipalities do you
thi nk you have worked for as a | and pl anner?

A I woul d guess somewhere between 40 or 50.

Q And in working for those nunicipalities,
woul d that be perform ng services that you described
for us earlier?

A Sonme are difficult to renenber as you were
goi ng over them but generally they were for
conprehensi ve planni ng, zoning, site plan review
general consultation on | and devel opnment policies,
subdi vi sion control. Each one was a little bit
different, but the answer to your question would be
yes.

Q What about private sector clients that you
have been involved with, sonme of the nmmjor ones that
you can recall?

A Well, the closest to the village hall that
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estate which was a 1,500 acre property. | was

responsi bl e for the lIand pl anni ng,

the zoning and al

of the | andscape architecture. | have worked al so --

near by woul d be Lake Forest for the Sunset

Food chain

doing real estate consulting. And | did part of the

I and planning, and I think we did all the | andscape

architecture on their store, their shopping center in

| ook |i ke a McDonal d' s?

Lake Forest. | worked for MDonald's in that same
ar ea.

Q In Lake Forest?

A In Lake Forest.

Q The one that doesn't

A The one that | ooks so nice, yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE:

have a drive-in w ndow?

THE W TNESS:

achi eved a certain | eve

The one that doesn't

Now it does because the sal es

so that they now are able to

drive through. In fact |I broke nmy diet the other day

and drove through.

That's the only reason |

know it's

1389
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HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Thank you, sir
THE WTNESS: | have worked on projects in Buffalo
Grove. We have done nunerous comunities in the Lake

County area, at |east, you know, three, four, five.
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have -- | was mentioning before |I represent the Brach
foundati on and their properties, their hundreds of
acres, the Rice estate which was 1,500 acres. There is
just many. | have designed and worked on these for so
many years, it's hard to recall all of them
BY MR, KOLAR:

Q Goi ng back to nmunicipalities, have you been
the village planner so to speak by contract for certain

nmuni cipalities?

A Yes, | have.
Q Can you nane a few of those?
A I was in Round Lake Beach which is north of

here up until about a year or two ago, we're not any
longer. We were recently retained by the Village of

G |l berts, which is out in MHenry County. For a nunber
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of years, about 12 years, | was the village planner for
the Village of Bl oom ngdale which is out in Du Page
County. Many of the ones that you read off -- in fact
in nmost instances, there were sone exceptions, we
served -- or | served as the village planner where
went attended their meetings and assisted them

Q Are you a nenber of any |and planning
or gani zati ons?

A | belong to the Anerican Pl anning

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

Associ ation, the American Association of Consulting
Planners -- I"mnot quite sure what those initials
are -- and the Anmerican Society of Landscape
Architects.

Q Have you ever lectured regarding |and
pl anni ng i ssues, | and consultation?

A Yes, | have.

Q Where at?

A | have lectured at Northwestern University,
t hey have a graduate school in real estate. | lectured

before the Attorney Ceneral's O fice. Every -- this is

1391
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about two or three years ago, they have an educationa
sem nar for attorneys on eninent donmain. | have
| ectured in the Departnment of Urban Geography at
Carthage College. And | have given nunerous speeches
bef ore pl anni ng conmi ssions and ot her public bodies
t hroughout the years.

Q Where did you work as a | and planner before
starting Allen Kracower & Associ ates?

A I worked with the United States Departnent of
Housi ng and Urban Devel opnent .

Q HUD?

A HUD

Q What did you do there?
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A | served as the special assistant to the
adm nistrator, and I was stationed in Chicago and
responsi ble, along with three other specials and the
adm nistrator, for administration of the agency's
prograns throughout the M dwestern sector of the United
St at es.

Q And have you testified as a |land planner in
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courts or in administrative hearings?

A Yes.

Q Can you nanme sonme courts that you testified
in?

A | have testified as an expert in this county,

Lake County, WII County, Kane County, MHenry County,
Cook County, Du Page County, Dekalb County. | think
there may be sone others, but those are the ones that |
can recall.

Q Have you ever testified before the
Envi ronmental Protection Agency or in an E.P. A matter
or Pollution Control Board matter?

A | have, yes.

Q Are you famliar with the LTD property in
Bannockbur n?

A Yes, | am

Q And did you have a famliarity with that

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

property before working on this project?
A Yes, | did, but nore | would say in a

general i zed sense because | live in the area and | have
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been in the industrial park before and driven by it.

So nmy know edge prior to this assignment was nore of

a -- | think a generalized know edge rather than a very
speci fic know edge.

Q And just generally, relative to this project,
what was the nature of your assignnent?

A. It was to basically evaluate the subject
property froma |l and use perspective and, based on ny
profession, to nake a deternm nation as to the
conpl i ance of the subject property in terns of the
SLUCM code or the standards, environnmental pollution
control standards that would govern conpl ai nants'
requests such as noise. And | generally | ooked at
several criteria that | felt related to | and use to
make that determ nation. One of those would be the
classification where there was A, B, C, D. Another was
to generally nmake a general determ nation as to whether
or not this property had any econonic significance or
soci al significance in the context of its geographic
area and to ultimately deternmine if there was any

signi ficant adverse inpact to the -- you know, the

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

1394



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

community as a whol e.
Q And, in terms of your job, at some point |
had basically showed you the Section 33(c) factors from
the Environmental Protection Act and asked what, if
anyt hing, you could investigate further fromLTD s
per spective?
A Yes.
Q About how many tinmes have you been to the LTD

property for this?

A. Up until this, I would say five tines as of
t oday.

Q Have you been inside the warehouse buil ding?

A Yes.

Q VWhen were you |l ast at the LTD property?

A. I was there yesterday.

Q And when you were inside the building did you
receive a tour?

A Yes, | did.

Q And Jack Voigt do you recall gave you that
tour?

A Yes. M. Voigt gave ne a tour of al nost al
t he buil di ng.

MR. KAl SER: Foundation, please. Are we talking

about yesterday's visit or the first visit?
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BY MR KOLAR:

Q When was it that you received a tour from M.
Voi gt ?

A That was my first visit to the property back
in 19- -- | would say the latter part of 1999, in that
intime frame.

Q And generally in the nonoffice part of the
bui | di ng what did you see on your tour?

A Certain storage of materials of various types
that are -- the best way | can describe themis they
are portrayed in a variety of catalogs. There are
hundreds of different things, so it would be difficult
to describe each one. Then | noticed predoni nantly
packagi ng and crating people were essentially taking
items of f of shelves, packing theminto boxes, sealing
boxes, taking the boxes, nmoving themoff to the freight
area, and | oading them on trucks.

Did you see any conveyer belts?
Yes.

And what were those used for generally?

> O > O

It was novenent of boxes and goods. There
were packing materials, quite a significant |abor

suppl y, assenbling, packaging, crating, taking the
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| ocation they were going to.

Q And on any of your visits did you see the
trucking operations in terns of its truck staging area?

A Yes.

Q And you wal ked around out si de?

A On all of ny visits | drove through and/or
wal ked.

Q Did you visit the conplainants' properties to
the north?

A I did.

Q How did you do that?

A | didit intw ways. | drove ny car to the
back of the property -- to what | would call the back
of LTD s property line. There is a hedge row back
there and fence. | parked ny car on a couple occasions
and stood in the back along the fence because | felt
that generally approxi mated the boundari es between the
residential core to the north or the industrial type or

LTD property to the south. | then inspected the front
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of the plaintiffs' property by parking ny car in the
street, | think it's Wdgewood Street, and then | would
ei ther put ny wi ndows down 'cause | was interested in
noi se and/or on a couple of occasions | got out and

wal ked back and forth along the front property line,
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whi ch woul d be the street cross section, so that |
could hear anything that was going on at that
particular tinme. So that way | was able to hear noise
in the front property line and noi se on the back
property line, which froma |and planning or |and use
per spective was adequate.

Q What was your personal experience regarding
noi se when you were on Wedgewood by the conpl ai nants'
properties?

MR. KAI SER: Obj ection, relevance and | ack of
di scl osure.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar

MR, KAISER: It's not relevant to his opinion that
he's going to offer here today and it's never been

di scl osed that he was going to render observations
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about noise or the qualities of noise.

MR. KOLAR: Well, he's got an opinion regarding
the Section 33(c) factor which is since |ocated at a
maj or commerci al business interchange. LTD s
operations does not interfere with the health and
general wel fare and physical property of the people,
and it's not -- well, it's not an opinion, nunber one,
he's here as a |and planner regarding suitability of

the LTD site and classification of the LTD site.
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think it's --

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Does his opinion that
you di scl osed reference the 33(c) factors you just
enuner at ed?

MR, KOLAR: No, but | can pretty much quote them
verbatimthe disclosed opinions. This is what was
given to M. Kaiser. | do have it marked as an
exhibit. This is ny copy but --

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kaiser, if it
references the 33(c) factors, | can see that the

suitability of the environment and LTD in that
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envi ronnent are proper terns of disclosure. | know
that doesn't meke a | ot of sense, but |I'mgoing to over
t he objecti on.

MR. KAI SER: That's fine.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: It's too close to after
lunch for me to meke | arge anmobunts of sense.

M. Kol ar, you can proceed.

BY MR KOLAR:

Q What was your personal experience on your
visits on Wedgewood regardi ng noi se?

A In terns of noise, and I did not neasure it
by machine, I'mnot qualified in that area, but |

observed it because it's part of nmy |and use anal ysis

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

and part of the foundation at |east to a nom nal
degree. The noise that | heard was tollway noise in
the front. On none of the occasions that | was there
did | hear any noise that | would consider to be truck
noi se such as | did hear when | was on the LTD
property. There | heard trucks backing up and beepi ng.

| heard engines running. But what | heard on the
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street or at the curb |ine was predom nantly -- and |
want to call it the roar of traffic fromthe Tri-State
toll road which I"mquite famliar with 'cause | hear
it at my hone, it was a simlar type of noise but nmuch
stronger and | ouder than where |I live. | live about

one mle fromthe tollway.

Q One nmile west of the tollway?

A. One mle west. And these hones, if you | ook
at that aerial photograph, which is exhibit -- | don't
know.

Q 89.

A. Exhibit 89. And if one inch equals 100
feet -- I"'mjust going to estimate -- there are about

12 inches here, so you're about 1,200 feet |ess than,
you know, a quarter of a mile, and you would anticipate
the noise would be louder. So that's what | observed

in terms of generalized sounds fromthe frontage of the

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

Plaintiffs' properties, all three.
Q In fact this Exhibit 89, a March 1999 aeri al,

and Exhibit 88, a 1988 aerial, you obtained these maps?

1400
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A. Yes, | did.

Q And gave themto me?

A Yes, sir.

Q I'd ask if you could step down so you can

explain to us, using 89, the location of LTD and j ust
explain the | and planner, the |land uses in the area.

A. Very generally, the predom nant |and use in
the area is the Tri-State tollway going fromlllinois
to the south to Wsconsin further to the north.

LTD, which I'll call the subject property, is
| ocated on the northeast quadrant of the Tri-State
tollway and Hi ghway 22. Highway 22 is a state hi ghway,
an arterial highway going al nost fromthe eastern
limts of the |ake, westerly out probably toward the
Al gonqui n area and beyond. It transcends Lake County.
So the subject property or at least the LTD property is
at this northeast quadrant. Also significant, in terns
of land use, is the fact that this is a four-way
i nterchange. So traffic going east and westbound on
Hi ghway 22 can access the Tri-State tollway. And

traffic that goes north and southbound on the Tri-State

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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tollway can access Highway 22. So in |and use pl anning
eviction this would be called a | arge transportation
node. LTD takes part in that |ocation

Very briefly, the other significant
conponents on here would be Trinity College, which is
sout h of Hi ghway 22 and east of the tollway. There is
an office structure i mediately to the southeast corner
of the tollway and 22. At the southwest corner of 22
and the tollway are the Tri-State office buildings.
They front al nost on the west side of the Tri-State
tollway. They have been there for many years. There
is also a hotel. And then, as one goes further west,
the residential use.

Most of the land west of the Tri-State
tollway and south of 22 is in the Village of
Li ncol nshire. Mst of the land north of 22 and west of
the Tri-State tollway, including the | arge structures,
several large structures of the Hewitt buildings, they
al so are corporate office use. In Lincolnshire the
| and generally on the east side of Hi ghway 22, both
north and south -- east of the tollway, both north and
south of 22, are generally located in the Village of
Bannockburn.

The only other significant issues would be
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east of LTD is an office structure with parking behind
it that fronts upon the residential area to the north.
There is a newer office building, a three-story

buil ding built by Pazzuti.

Q And that would be this building directly to
t he east of the 1995 expansion of LTD?

A. Yes. And, lastly, | said that tw ce, but
really lastly, to the north of LTDis a totally
consi stent change of land use including the plaintiffs
properties and other residential |and uses, and they
are in another regulatory control, the City of Lake
Forest, Illinois.

Q And as part of your work did you exam ne the
Bannockburn zoni ng map?

A Yes.

Q That's a copy as Exhibit 90, a current
zoni ng, January 1, 1998, correct?

A Yes.

Q And in terms of |and planning, |aying out,
zoni ng, what does this show to you regarding the
Bannockburn area?

A Well, the zoning map as well as aeria
phot ographs portray |land use patterns. \Wat's

significant here in ternms of |and use and | and use
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pl anning, and it's the Bannockburn zoning map, is that
this Tri-State tollway, which is a transportation | and
use, is the western boundary. And all the |land al ong
the eastern boundary in the Village of Bannockburn is
either listed as a C, a college district, an O as an
of fice research district, and sonething that they cal
FH, flood plan hazard overlay. |In other words, all the
| and uses adjacent to the Tri-State tollway are
nonresidential in character. There are no residentia
l and uses within this area of the Village of
Bannockburn. The sanme situation can be seen on the
aerial photograph but in nore of a pictorial birds-eye
Vi ew

Q As you get further east fromthe tollway how
does it change?

A. As one gets further east of the tollway, with
the noise and its intended problens, then, as |
menti oned before, there are the comrercial type office
uses that buffer the tollway. And then as Bannockburn

gets into its planning process, it's noved into
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predom nantly residential [and uses as you get off
toward Waukegan Road. So it goes fromthe tollway to a
buffer of office/conmercial type uses, then into the

residential section. So, in city planning terns, these

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

are all transitions of land use. And LTD is located in
the buffer -- what I'mgoing to call the buffer
transition zone, not just to the Tri-State toll road
but also to the interchange at 22 and the Tri-State
which places it in an ideal location froma city
pl anni ng perspecti ve.

Q Thank you.

Do you have an opini on whether LTD
Conmodities is suitable for the area in which it is
| ocated i n Bannockburn?

A Yes, | do.
What is that opinion?
Well, it's suitable.

What's the basis for that opinion?

> O > O

Sone of the things that | have just gone

over. First of all, it is a nonresidential use and
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it's located at the northeast quadrant of the -- what |
call the transportation node of 22 and the Tri-State
toll road. It has a significant amobunt of truck
traffic and vehicular traffic. So in terms of |and

pl anning, it should be |located in an area where it has
reasonabl e and rapid access to mmjor arterial roads or
hi ghways so that traffic does not have to go through

residential nei ghborhoods to get to it. |In the case of

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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LTD, traffic can go alnost immediately fromtheir plant
to Lakeview Drive, which is a road that goes out on
Hi ghway 22, and then it can be dispersed onto a state
hi ghway east or west on 22 to whatever its destination
is or go directly onto the Tri-State toll road for
intrastate type traffic either to the north or south.
So it probably couldn't have a better location in terns
of urban planning than it shares today.

Q What about the hones to the north though in
terms of how can LTD be suitably | ocated and you have
residential homes in Lake Forest inmmediately to the

nort h?
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A There are -- what's happened here is there
are two different governmental entities each having,
through their police power, zoning authority and
pl anni ng authority. There is Bannockburn of which the
subject -- of which LTDis in and then to the north the
plaintiffs, and the subdivision of which they are a
part, live in the City of Lake Forest. They're not
general ly consistent |and uses, one with the other
residential single famly with industrial type
devel opnent. But in this particular case LTD and the
office park of which it's a part were zoned prior -- or

| should say built prior to the tine that the

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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residences or the plaintiffs' honmes were built. So it
was a preexisting |land use condition. And then
thereafter the City of Lake Forest allowed the
residential units to the north to be built w thout any
type of significant buffer in between them

Q And do you understand that LTD was expanded
in stages?

A Yes, | do.
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Q You have been in the county |ong enough, do
you recall FMC had occupied the building originally?

A I remenmber FMC. | never knew what FMC did
but | renenber FMC.

Q So froma |land pl anni ng perspective, it's not
good pl anning by Lake Forest to all ow homes --

MR. KAI SER: Obj ection, |eading.
BY MR. KOLAR:

Q Woul d you call it good planning by Lake
Forest -- strike that.

How woul d you characterize the planning

deci sion by Lake Forest to have the Roti, Rosenstrock
and Weber lots in their proximty to the uses in
Bannockburn to the south?

A Under the condition in which they did it, it

was -- | don't know how to say this politely -- it was

L.A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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not properly designed, and that if residential |and use
was to go there, two things should have happened.
There should have been a significant difference in

spaci ng between these honmes and the Bannockburn
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properties or a larger urban berm In other words, it
shoul d have been buffered and it was not. And the sane
buffering should have taken place along the Tri-State
tollway, which in essence it did not.

As one goes further north on the tollway
today, you will see that Lake Forest and/or the
property owners, including Conway Farns, which is a
very large devel opnment north of Everett Road, have
correctly put in large urban berns to protect the
residential uses fromthe problems of the tollway. So
it was an exanple really of planning that |acked
excel | ence.

MR. KOLAR: Just for the record M. Hara has to
| eave for his traffic ticket.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Thank you, M. Hara.
BY MR. KOLAR:

Q M. Kracower, as part of your work on this
case did you review what | marked as Respondent's
Exhibit 34, and that's the Standard Land Use Codi ng

Manual ?

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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A Yes.

Q As part of your work in this case did you
forman opinion as to whether LTD should be classified
as a Cclassification or B classification under the
i ndex attached to the Pollution Control Board
Regul ati ons?

A Yes, | did.

Q Why did you refer to the Standard Land Use

Codi ng Manual in determ ning the proper classification

of LTD?

A | referred to that manual, it's called S
for -- a synonymalnost, S-L-U-CM It's called
Standard Land Use Coding Manual. 1It's called Standard

Land Use Codi ng Manual because within the Pollution
Control Board Regul ations there is reference to this
docunent, and it requires in part that a determnation
be made as to the | and use classification. And this is
the docunent that they make reference to.

Q In terns of the regul ati ons, where you note
that it's referenced, you talk about the definition
sections?

A Wel |, one would be the definition sections
and the other would be back in the standards section

The title would be under Section 901. 101,

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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classifications of land according to use. It indicates
that |and shall include all |and used as specified by
the SLUCM code, and then it goes on

Q Then as we indicated earlier part of your
work in this case -- you see this Appendi x B, standard

| and use codi ng system --

A Yes.
Q -- attached to the regul ations?
A Yes.

Q And you formed an opi nion regarding the
proper classification under this Appendix B?

A Yes, | did.

Q Okay. Had you ever worked with that Standard
Land Use Codi ng Use Manual before this project?

A Yes. | have that in ny office, and | have
sonething called the Standard Industrial C assification
System And | periodically, although they're getting
rather dated |I might add, would | ook at these things as
| prepared zoning ordinances for lists of uses. They
sometines serve as an interesting guide.

Q So you said Standard sonet hi ng
classification, SIC?

A Yes, Standard Industrial Classification.

Q Right. And that Appendix B has SIC

1409



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

1410

referenced on it as well, right?

A Yes. | believe it's in industrial. It's a
SIC code, S-1-C

Q | think you're right. It says in Footnote 1
on the Appendi x, the use of standard industria
cl assification nonmencl ature.

VWhen you were inside the LTD operations --
I'"l'l mark this as LTD Exhibit 100, a box -- did you see
boxes like this?
A Yes, | saw boxes all different sizes that
| ook sonething |ike that.
(Respondent's Exhi bit No. 100
was marked for
i dentification.)

BY MR KOLAR:

Q So based on your site inspection, your |and
pl anni ng experience, the SLUCM do you have an opinion
regardi ng the proper classification of LTD under this
Appendi x B to the Pollution Control Board Regul ations?

A. Yes, | do.
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be?
A

Q

In terns of

lettering what woul d your opinion

Cas in Charlie.

And in terns of actual

L. A. REPORTING (312)

nunbering, did you
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forman opinion as to what would be the --

A

Q
A

freight forwardi ng services.

Yes.

VWhat woul d that be?

There were two nunbers. |

crating services. |

had 4921, which is

And 4922, packagi ng and

believe those are the right

erns that

got a copy of

nunbers, but, if not, those are the t
acconpany them
Q Here. Let's look. | have
Appendi x B. 4921, freight forwarding services?
A That's correct.
Q That was your opinion?
A Yes.
Q And 4922, packing and crating services?
A That's correct.
Q Al right. And in terns of

reachi ng that

1411
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concl usion regarding the Class C and the actua
nunbering, how, if at all, did the SLUCM hel p you, the
manual ?

A The manual basically sets forth the generic
categories that breaks it down nore definitively into
nore detailed categories. It also periodically has
certain footnotes that one can use, if necessary, to

refine termnology. As | have said before, it is

L.A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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getting a little -- the docunent becones a little bit
dated. Sonme of the terns are a little different than
t oday, but generally, by alnobst a process of
elimnation, one can go through and cone up with what
really serves as a primary functional category. The
manual really indicates that the activity is the single
nost inportant factor of determi ning |land use. So you
really have to | ook at not just the building or the
generic character of a building that, you know, a |ay
person m ght use or even an architect or anybody m ght
use but you have to look at what really is the

predom nant activity or activities, plural, that go on
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in a building in order to come up with an al phabetica
classification determ nation

Q And froma laynmen's perspective | guess you
can call that building a warehouse?

A You could call it a warehouse. |'msure a
| ot of people do call it -- | nmean, generally if you
look at it you'd say it's a warehouse or the city m ght
call it a warehouse. But calling it that generically
or crudely and then going back and having to conply
with the SLUCM regul ations is a totally different
scenario, and at that point you' re required to be far

nore far specific.
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Q In terns of -- you nentioned activity. In
terms of activity at the LTD headquarters, what in your
opi nion of what you saw the |argest activity that --
the greatest activity there in ternms of use of the
bui | di ng?

A Well, the greatest activity and the area that
consuned what | would call the predom nant fl oor area

was packagi ng and crating.
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Q And that's one of the classifications you
have sel ected?

A. Packagi ng and crating services is 4922, and
that was one of the two categories that went on. Nbtor
freight forwardi ng woul d invol ve trucks, you know,
bringing materials there and taking them away.

Q And you witnessed the truck activity?

A Yes, | did.

Q Now, this Appendix B to the regulations has a
code 637, warehousing and storage services, did you see
t hat ?

A Yes.

Why didn't you use that code for LTD?
War ehousi ng and storage, in addition to what
you just read, also has, and it's hard to see it, a

little footnote after it, No. 2, and if you find that

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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footnote back here --
Q I think it's back here farther. Let's see.
You were going the right way. Sorry. |

think it's on Page B20 of the appendi x.
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A So if you research that footnote, if you're
inclined to do sonething |like that under a code,
war ehousi ng and storage includes only those facilities
that are used by or open to the public.

Q What's your understanding of LTD s buil ding
in that regard?

A. Well, LTD s building is not really a public
war ehousing facility.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar, the document
you were just referring to, is that going to be listed
as an exhibit?

MR, KOLAR: No, this is just -- | think anybody
would -- this is what | got fromthe Pollution Control
Boar d.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Then it nust be proper
and accurate. | just want the Board to know what we're
tal ki ng about.

MR. KOLAR: It's dated June '91, but this is what
Dorothy Gunn sent me in August of '99 when | had a

qguestion regarding the inpulsive section. | wanted to

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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make sure | had the --

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: And this is Title 35,
Subtitle H, noise, Chapter 1.

MR, KOLAR: Yes. And it says, includes -- in
terms of a regulation, includes anendnents through
January 28, 1987.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: And that's fine, you
identified the pages. | just wanted to nake sure we
knew whi ch docunents we're tal ki ng about.

MR. KOLAR And the appendi x attached, Appendix B
standard | and use coding systems, it has nunmbers B-1
t hrough B- 25.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE:  Thank you.

BY MR KOLAR:

Q M. Kracower, again these -- using | think

M. Knittle' s copy of the Environnental Protection Act,

Section 33(c)(i), you read that paragraph before today,

right?
A Yes.
Q It says, in making its orders and

determ nation the Board shall consider "the character
and degree of injury to or interference with the
protection of the health, general warfare and physica

property of the people.™

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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Do you have an opini on whether LTD s
operation here at 294 and Route 22 in Bannockburn
interfered with the protection of the health, genera
wel fare and physical property of the people?

MR, KAISER: | would object with respect to
foundation. | don't think M. Kracower has any
expertise which would allow himto address injury to
the health of the people.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar.

MR, KOLAR: | think that's what |and planning is
all about, that you plan so as to mnimnze the inpact
of land uses on people. That's why you have transition
zones and things |like that.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Obj ecti on, overrul ed.

BY MR. KOLAR:

Q Do you have an opinion regarding that?

A Yes.

Q And what is your opinion?

A That generally the facility does not have a

signi ficant adverse inpact to the public health, safety
or welfare.

Q And you acknow edge that the Rotis,
Rosenstrocks and Webers are conpl ai ni ng about LTD?

A Well, | understand that they may be -- they
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have conpl ai ned about noise --

Q But in terns of --

A -- but in terms of area wi de planning, we
tal ked about the people and | would say there is no
significant adverse inpact. And it's basically the
same finding that the Village of Bannockburn nade when
they zoned this | and.

MR, KAI SER: (bj ection, foundation.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar.

MR, KOLAR: | don't have a response.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: | was going --

MR. KAl SER: Well --

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Go ahead, M. Kaiser,
what were you going to say?

MR, KAISER: | was going to say this. | nmean, M.
Kol ar is going to nmake whatever argunents he will about
what the zoni ng approval by Bannockburn may or may not
be, but | don't think M. Kracower is entitled to do
t hat .

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: | was going to sustain

your objection.
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MR. KAISER:  You still will?
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: | still am

bj ection sustai ned.
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BY MR KOLAR:

Q From a | and pl anni ng perspective when you
prepare conprehensive plans for villages or | ook at
| and plans that a person brings to a village for
approval, does a |land planner consider if a use wll
interfere with the health, general welfare and physica
property of the people?

A I don't know about other people. | do and
have testified to it for many years. The answer is
yes. It's a general factor that we look at in
conpr ehensi ve pl anni ng and zoni ng.

Q In terns of if you want an LTD facility in
your comrunity, froma |and planning perspective to
mnimze the inpact on the people generally in a
comunity, is this an appropriate | ocation?

A Yes. As | have said before, it is

appropriately | ocated.
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Q Do you have an opinion if LTD provides socia
and/ or econom c value to the area, its operation there
i n Bannockburn?

MR, KAI SER:  Obj ection, foundation.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar.

I can rule on it with no response.

MR. KOLAR: | have no response

L.A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: The objection is
overruled. | think this does qualify under his |and
pl anni ng background.

Do you need the question repeated, sir?

THE WTNESS: No, | renenber it.

Yes, | do.
BY MR KOLAR:

Q And what i s your opinion?

A. It provides both social and econom c
attributes and benefits to the community.

Q In what regard?

A Socially -- | nmean, they enploy somewhere in

excess of 600 to 1,200 or 1,000 people, so it provides
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an enpl oynent base, enploynent opportunities and
econom ¢ opportunities for people who work there.
Secondly, | think froman econom ¢ point of
view it provides a significant tax revenue about ---
it's in excess of $600,000 a year to all of the loca
taxing districts. And | knowthat -- as | recall the
school districts here receive sonewhere between 60 to
70 percent of the tax revenue in Bannockburn. That
woul d be the Deerfield Hi gh School and the Bannockburn
El ementary School district. So the attributes socially

pertain to enploynent base and to the various |evels of

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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| ocal governnent that are receptive to receiving in
excess of $600,000 on an annual reoccurring basis.

And then lastly, |ike many nonresidentia
| and uses, the tax revenues that go to the schoo
districts are uni que because this devel opnent does not
generate any school children to the school system such
as a residential devel opnent would. So that's an extra
bonus for comunities that have these kind of uses

within them



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Q In terns of real estate taxes, you would
defer to the tax bill for the exact anmount?

A Yes.

Q I think you m spoke. | would nove to

i ntroduce Respondent's Exhibit 39 which is a public
record of the tax bill for 1999.

A. Did I say 6007

Q Yes.

A. I meant over 300. |[|'msorry.

Q Okay. Good.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kaiser, do you have
an objection to Respondent's 39 which --

MR, KOLAR: Which is a photocopy of the real
estate tax bill for 1999 payable this year 2000.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: The '99 real estate

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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bill?
MR, KOLAR: Right.
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Is that of LTD?
MR. KOLAR Right.

MR. KAISER: | have no objection.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: It's admitted.
(Respondent's Exhibit No. 39
was admitted into evidence.)
MR, KOLAR: For the record the -- | guess you
could check my math, but | added up '99, and it totals
304,339.68. So I'Il give you that one.
BY MR. KOLAR:

Q Did | forget anything? | don't have any

ot her questi ons.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: | don't know, M. Kol ar.
MR, KOLAR: | always like to ask my witness that
questi on.

Then | have no further questions of M.
Kracower .
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kai ser, do you want
to start now or do you want a little break?
MR. KAISER: 1'd like a break because | want to
see whether we already have in the record a docunent

I'd like to show M. Kracower. So if we could take

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Take an eight nminute
recess.

MR. KAI SER  Sure. Thanks.

(Short break.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar, you had sone
clarification on your Exhibit 39?

MR, KOLAR: Right. Just so there is no confusion,
| TD i s made up of four parcels which have individua
per manent i ndex nunbers, and they are 16-18-300-021
16- 18- 301- 001, 15-13-407-001 and 15-13-400-026. And
t hose four pin nunbers, if you add up the taxes for the
year 1999 payable in 2000, by nmy math equal 304, 339. 68.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Thank you.

M. Kai ser, you can begin your cross exam
M. Kracower, you probably know this but
you're still under oath.

THE W TNESS: Thank you.

CROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MR KAl SER

Q M. Kracower, now you identified LTD as
having certain social and econom c value to the
comunity, is that right?

A Yes.

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Q And with respect to the social value, you
said it enpl oys sonewhere between 600 and 1, 200 peopl e
at the Bannockburn facility, correct?

A Yes.

Q So that's 600 to 1,200 people at the building

right here in the center of Respondent's Exhibit 89,

correct?
A. I believe that's where they go, yes.
Q And t he econom ¢ val ue you said were the tax

revenues that were generated for the County of Lake,
the Forest Preserve, West Deerfield Township, Village
of Bannockburn, Deerfiel d-Bannockburn Fire and so forth

as indicated on Respondent's Exhibit 39, the tax bill

right?
A Yes.
Q In what way would the social or economc

benefits of LTD have been dim nished if LTD or if
Bannockburn had required LTD to build a bermon the
northern boundary of LTD s property?

A There woul d be no rel ationship between the
soci al and economi c benefits in a berm

Q But you could build a bermand it wouldn't
reduce the conmercial or econom c benefits, would it?

A | don't know what size berm one could build

1423
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there. |It's pretty narrow.
Q Well, this is your business, isn't it?
A It was not part of ny assignment to get into

mtigation.

> o » O >

Q
a dozen ti
A
Q
A

Q

You're a |land planner, right?

Yes.

You're a | andscape architect?

Yes.

You have desi gned berns before, haven't you?
Yes.

You have been out to the LTD facility a half
mes, right?

Yes.

You were out there yesterday, weren't you?
Yes.

You parked your own car at the northern

boundary of the parking |ot, haven't you?

A.
Q
and Weber

A

Yes.
In order to | ook onto the Roti, Rosenstrock
properties, correct?

Yes.
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Q Do you have a professional opinion as you sit
here today whether LTD could have constructed a noise

berm al ong the northern boundary of their property?

L.A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

A. It was not part of ny assignment, but | can
tell you that | just designed a bermon the Pazzut

building and it wouldn't fit.

Q It would not fit here?

A No.

Q Woul d a noise wall fit here?

A I have no expertise in noise walls.

Q Did you read any of the transcripts of the

hearing from Novenber in preparation for your testinony

t oday?

A No.

Q Do you have any reason to believe
construction of a noise wall, right along the northern

boundary of the truck staging area, would reduce the
soci al or econom c value of LTD s Bannockburn facility?
MR, KOLAR: bj ection, asked and answered

regardi ng noi se walls.
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MR. KAISER It hasn't been asked nor has it been
answer ed.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: You were tal ki ng noi se
berms before?

MR. KAISER: Yes, and | said along the northern
property line. Now | have noved it into the area that

M. Huff described and M. Zak described i medi ately

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292

north of the truck staging area and to the south of
LTD s northern parking |ot.

MR, KOLAR: He said noise berm then | thought he
said noise wall, and M. Kracower said it's not his
area, noise walls.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Right. But | think he's
noved the -- whatever the noise barrier is farther
south. |Is that correct, M. Kaiser

MR. KAISER: That's correct.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE:  So |'Il| overrule.

Do you need the question repeated?

THE WTNESS: No. | renenber the question

As | said, | have no expertise at all in
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noi se walls, and | have no understandi ng of the heighth
of a wall or what it |ooks like or howit operates, and
it transcends the nature of ny assignnent. So |'m not
able to really tell you what inpact something |like that
could have. | don't know if it's, you know, six feet
hi gh or 80 feet high.
BY MR KAl SER

Q Well, let ne give you a few nore facts, M.
Kracower. It would be 13 feet high, and it would run
fromthe western end of the dock area to the eastern

end and make the curb towards Lake Drive there,

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292

what ever the heck it's called, that eastern road com ng
up along the side of the LTD facility. Wth that
i nformati on, can you give us an opinion?

A. No.

Q | see. So you can only give us a very
limted opinion of the econom c and social value as it
is today, but you have no opinion as to whether a noise
wal | would affect LTD s social and econonic value, is

that right?
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A That's correct because | said that, nunber
one, | have no expertise in noise walls. | have never
seen a design for a noise wall in any of the
docunentation that | have or was nade available to ne.
And, thirdly, it's such an innocuous subject that |
think that in the broad context of urban planning
don't know how a noise wall would or would not have any
relationship at all to the broad ram fications of tax
revenues generated or an enpl oynent base.

Q You can't put that together with all your
training, your 30 years of experience, your Master's
degrees, you can't tie in a noise wall and give us any
kind of an opinion as to whether that would affect the
tax revenues from LTD s Bannockburn facility?

MR. KOLAR:  Cbjection, asked and answered. 1'd

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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ask that the question be stricken.
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE:  Sust ai ned.
But, M. Kaiser, | think you m sunderstand
hi s answer.

BY MR. KAI SER
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Q What part of a noise wall is innocuous to you
as a |l and planner?

A. I think what I"mtrying to -- what | have
tried to say is that, once again, not having any
expertise in it, not having any idea what you're
tal ki ng about or seen any real plans from an expert
ot her than your own testinony, the subject is so
i nnocuous in the context of generation of tax revenue
that it's like saying if | designed a building to be a
triangle versus a square, would that have any inpact on
the tax revenue, and that has no relationship. So
whet her there is a noise wall or no noise wall, whether
the building is square or triangle, none of those
i ssues really have any relationship to ny direct
testimony pertaining to the generation of revenues,
econom ¢ benefits or social benefits to a community.

Q Well then how did, if you know, the County of
Lake deternmine what the appropriate real estate tax

woul d be for LTD?

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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townshi p assessor that made the assessnent, and it's
done in a rather conplicated way with building |and
fixtures, and that's the extent of ny know edge. The
assessor would know better that | woul d.

Q So ot her than know ng that $300,000 in tax
revenues is in general a good thing for the bodies who
recei ve that noney, you don't know nuch about rea
estate taxation, is that fair?

A No.

Q That's not fair?

A No.

Q Well, tell us what you know about real estate
t axation.

A First of all, the question is so broad, could

you refine it for me?

Q No.

A Then | couldn't answer it. |'msorry.

Q Well, what, if any, inpact does the fact that
LTD' s building is roughly rectangular -- it is
rectangul ar and roughly a square, does the size of it
and the shape of it as a square as opposed to a
triangl e have any inpact on the tax revenues?

A No.

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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Q None what soever, right?

A None.

Q So why earlier did you throw out that exanple
of I don't knowif it's triangle or square, that has no
rel evance, does it?

A I was trying to explain the innocuous nature
of the question that you posed to ne in the context of
trying to relate it to social and econom c benefits. |
think it's apples and oranges.

Q So one of the benefits is LTD generates tax
revenues, right?

A Yes.

Q And you don't know or have any opinion as to
whet her construction of a noise wall would raise, |ower
or keep the tax rate on LTD s Bannockburn facility the
sane, correct?

A That's anot her questi on.

Do you have an answer ?
If there was a physical inprovenent on the
property, it could inpact the real estate taxes.

Q Woul d you consi der a noise wall a physica
i nprovenent ?

A Yes.

Q And what would be its inpact, the
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construction of a 13 foot noise wall along the northern
boundary of the dock staging area, what nmight its
i mpact be?

A | have no idea

Q Okay. Fair enough

Do you think any people would | ose their jobs

if LTD had to build a noise wall, a 13 foot high noise
wal | al ong and around the dock staging area on the
north end of its building?

A | don't think it would be related to jobs or
enpl oynment .

Q The question was, do you think anyone woul d
| ose their job at LTD s Bannockburn facility if
Bannockburn were required to build a noise wall -- if
LTD was required to build a noise wall along the truck
dock area?

A I couldn't see any enpl oynent |oss due to a
noi se wal | .

MR, KOLAR: Except the person that trins those
hedges there, Steve.

BY MR KAl SER

Q Now, one of your opinions was that you
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t hought there was no significant adverse inpact from

LTD s operations on the health and welfare of the

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292

people, is that right?

A Yes.

Q During the spring of 2000, other than what
you | earned about health through your own experience,
did you take any courses in public health?

A No.

Q When was the last tinme you took a course in

public health?

A | don't believe | have ever taken a course in

public health.

Q What was the last article you read on the
health affects of sleep deprivation?

A | just read an article while | was in the

hospital interestingly enough about a nonth ago.

Q And what do you recall fromthat article?
A That i nadequate sleep | eads to stress.
Q Do you have any reason to argue with that

conclusion of the article that you read while in the
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hospital ?

A. It really nmeant nothing to ne because |I'm not
qualified in sleep deprivation.

Q Al right. But it at least struck you in
some way that you renmenber it here this afternoon?

A Yes.

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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Q Do you have any reason to doubt that
proposition, that sleep loss can lead to stress?

A Once again, | have no expertise at all in
sleep loss or stress other than what | have incurred
nmyself in my 60 years of life, but I am not an expert
in stress or sleep |oss.

Q Did you read the deposition transcripts of
any of the conplainants in preparation for your
testinony?

A. | did some tinme ago.

Q Do you recall that Karen Roti tal ked about
noi se from LTD s dock operations preventing her from
falling asleep?

A | don't recall that, no.
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Q Do you recall Karen Roti testifying that
noi se from LTD s dock operati ons awakened her, and on
nunmer ous occasi ons her children, and kept them from
falling back to sleep?

A I remenber sone statenent to that effect.

Q Those statenments or that information that
Karen Roti and her fam |y nenbers were |osing sleep
because of LTD s dock operations, did you take that
into consideration in reaching your opinion?

A Yes.

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292

Q And in what way did you consider Karen Rot
and her famly's | oss of sleep in generating in your
opi nion that LTD has no significant adverse health
ef fect?

A Well, first of all | don't know -- that's
soneone's statenent that sonebody testified to. |
don't know if there actually was a | oss of sleep

that's nunber one. Nunber two, | nmade ny own on-site

observations external to the property in the front yard

and the rear yard. | did not go into their bedroom
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but I assume if | was in the rear yard, the noise would
be as loud if not louder. And it's my opinion that the
noi ses that | heard originating fromthe the toll road
were as severe or even worse in nost instances than
what | heard coming fromLTD. |In fact on a couple of
occasi ons when | was at LTD there was al nbst no noi se.
It was silent. And the only thing one could hear was
the tollway noise. The true test of what |'m
testifying is that for anybody to conme to a concl usion
of the severity of the plaintiff's suggesti on about

| osing sleep would be to stand in the front yard of the
property and the rear yard, as | did, and see what they
hear for themselves. When | did that, | concluded that

there was no significant adverse inpact to that

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292

property from LTD by itself. The property --

Q How many tinmes were you in a position to hear
the sound either at the rear of LTD s property, that is
to the south of the Rotis, or on Wedgewood Drive to the
north of the Rotis?

A | have been there on five occasions, and on
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five of the five occasions | went through that sanme
process. And on each one | was overwhel ned by the
significant noise conming fromthe tollway. And what |
observed on each one of those occasions --

MR. KAI SER: Mve to strike. The question as how
many tinmes. He told nme five. Nonresponsive.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar

MR, KOLAR: |'mgoing to have to hear his question
agai n.

MR. KAISER: | asked how many tinmes was he there,
he said five, the rest of it was nonresponsive.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: ['Ill grant the notion to
strike.
BY MR KAl SER

Q VWhat training do you have in the physics of

sound?
A None. As | testified |'mnot a sound expert.
Q And do you know whet her sound at the |evel at

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

whi ch you were standing at the northern edge of LTD s

parking | ot would be perceived identically to the
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sound -- if the sound source is LTD s dock area, do you
have any basis for concluding that the way you

percei ved the sound at the northern portion of LTD s
parking | ot was identical to the way Karen Roti and her
children perceived the sound from LTD s dock on the
second floor of their home?

A No.

Q What was it you concl uded was the predon nant
activity at LTD s Bannockburn facility?

A Packagi ng and crating.

Q And how did you deternmi ne that packagi ng and
crating was the predom nant activity?

A By observati on.

Q Do you know how nmuch of LTD s building in
Bannockburn -- approxi mately what percentage of the
entire square footage is devoted to storage?

A There is approxi mately a 400, 000 square foot
buil ding. There is about 50,000 square feet in
admi ni strative use, and the renmminder of that is in the
packagi ng and crating operation. And there is
approxi mately 24 | oadi ng docks attached to it.

Q Do you know what percentage of that 350, 000

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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square feet remmining, after you subtract the 50,000 in
adm nistrative areas, is cormitted to the storage of

boxes |i ke these, LTD Exhibit 1007?

A Well, no, because it doesn't operate that
way.

Q You were in there, weren't you?

A Yes.

Q You saw row after row after row of shelves

with boxes on them didn't you?

A. Yes but they were being --

Q That's enough. You answered ny question, M.
Kracower. Thank you.

VWat is the predom nant basis for LTD s

profits?

A I"'msorry, | don't understand your question.

Q Do you know whet her LTD makes a profit?

A No.
Q Did you talk with Jack Voigt or M chael Hara
about LTD s business?

A What do you nean by "business"?

Q What do you know LTD to do? What does LTD
do, M. Kracower?

A. They have a catalog, and they sell a variety

of different products on a business-to-busi ness basis.
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Q Have you seen Conpl ai nants' Exhibits C 2,
their Christmas 1998 catal og?

A I have seen various catal ogs, not the 1998
one. | have seen other ones.

Q Have you seen the spring of 1999 catal og,
Conpl ai nants' Exhibit C-1?

A | have seen several catal ogs, but | can't
tell you this is the exact one | have seen, but they
all look very simlar to ne.

Q Do you nmake any distinction between the
soci al value of selling nicknacks and gift items and

the social value of selling health care supplies?

A No.

Q You don't make any distinction between those
two?

A No.

Q As long as it makes a profit it has a socia

val ue, is that right?

A. No. | think you're testifying for ne, and
that is not what | said.

Q As long as they pay taxes they have socia

value, is that it?
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A Once again, | didn't say that. | nean, your

guestions are very argumentative, and I'mtrying to

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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answer them but you're suggesting that | have testified
to things that | have not testified to. So the answer
to your question would be no.

Q That there is no distinction -- well, "Il
wi t hdraw t he questi on.

Do you know does LTD contract -- well, do you
know what percentage of LTD s profits are derived from
the sales of the goods in these and similar catal ogs?

A No, that's beyond ny assignment.
Q Wel |, your assignment was to determ ne
whet her this was a Class B or Class C |and use, that

was part of your assignnent, wasn't it?

A To determ ne what the classification would
be, yes.
Q And part of your nethodol ogy was determ ning

the predominant activity of LTD at its Bannockburn
facility, wasn't it?

A Yes.
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Q And "predoni nant activity" | think you would
agree is a somewhat vague term isn't it, M. Kracower?

A | don't think it is in this case.

Q But you didn't ask M. Hara or M. Voigt or
find out fromany source within LTD what is the

predom nant basis for LTD s revenues?

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292

A That's correct, | did not use that word
Q Well, what word did you use? Did you ask

them at all how do you nake noney?

A | asked them about the nature of their
business. | did not ask themto | ook at their books or
whet her they made noney or | ost noney. It was

conpletely irrelevant --

Q Did you ask them do you --

MR. KOLAR  Cbjection, would he be allowed to
finish his answer before M. Kaiser cuts himoff and
starts anot her question?

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE:  Sust ai ned.

Did you pick that up? Did you pick up what

he sai d?
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(Record read as requested.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Is there anything past
t here?

THE W TNESS: There was a few nore words. |t was
conpletely irrelevant to the nature of my assignnent.
BY MR KAl SER

Q Do you know who owns this parcel of property
on which the LTD building is |ocated at Bannockburn,
[I1inois?

A. No, | do not.

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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Q Do you know who | eases this buil ding which
houses LTD s operations?

A No, | do not.

Q Do you know who owns the goods that are
stored under roof at LTD s Bannockburn facility?

A No.

Q Do you know who owns the trucks that deliver
the goods to LTD s Bannockburn facility?

A Generally -- in a generic way they are

out si de purveyors.
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Q Do you know who owns the trucks that take the
goods away from LTD s Bannockburn facility?

A Sanme response.

Q Do you know whet her LTD stores anyone else's
products under its roof at the Bannockburn facility?

A Not that |I'm aware of.

Q So what you're aware of is that everything
under the roof at the Bannockburn facility belongs to
LTD, is that right?

A | just said | don't know who it bel ongs to.
You asked nme that, and | said |I do not know the actual
| egal owner shi p.

Q Do you have any reason to believe that LTD is

| easi ng out warehouse space in Bannockburn to third

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

parties?
A [''m not aware of that.
Q Does that nmean that -- well, do you have a

belief as to whether they're doing that?
A I have no know edge of it.

Q How woul d you define -- do you have your
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SLUCM code in front of you there, M. Kracower?
(Docunent tendered.)
MR KAI SER: Thank you.
BY MR. KAI SER

Q Respondent's Exhibit 34.

Frei ght forwarding services 4921, that's what

you are telling the Board best describes LTD s
predom nant activity at its Bannockburn facility, is
that right?

A | said it was one of the predom nant
activities.

Q And t he other predom nant activities was
packi ng and crating services?

A Yes.

Q And you felt that those predoni nant
activities better describe what was going on at LTD
than, for instance, retail or whol esal e sal e of goods,

right?

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

A Yes.

Q You | ooked at retail sales within the SLUCM
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code, didn't you?

A Yes.

Q And you concluded that LTD is not really a
retail sales outfit, is it?

A That's correct.

Q And you | ooked at whol esale sales within the
SLUCM code, did you not?

A That's correct.

Q And you concluded, well, LTDis not really a
whol esal er either, right?

A You' re correct.

Q But you woul d concede LTD seens to sell an
awful lot of stuff, you'd grant us that, wouldn't you,

M. Kracower?

A Yes, they have a very | arge vol une.

Q And that volunme cones in on Lakeside Drive,
right?

A Yes.

Q It's unloaded into the warehouse, right?

A Yes.

Q And it stays there for sone period of tine,

correct?

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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Yes.

And then it | eaves again, right?

> o >

Yes.

Q And didn't M. Voigt tell you that the
inventory at the LTD facility in Bannockburn turns
approximately 12 tines a year?

A Yes, every 30 days is the way he put it.

Q Right. He said things come in, and at the
nost they stay there every 30 days?

A Yes.

Q And you recall during your deposition you and
| explored whether the ampbunt of tine that goods stayed
there inmpacted whether it was viewed as a warehouse or
a storage facility, is that right?

A Not correct. Not exactly.

Q What do you recall?

MR. KOLAR:  Cbjection, relevance as to what he
asked himat his dep. | think the dep is only relevant
regardi ng i npeachi ng.

MR, KAISER: | withdraw the question.

BY MR KAI SER

Q Do you know on the basis of your education

and experience what the average tine is for retail or a

catal og sal es house for inventory to remain on-site?
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A No.

Q Did you make any effort to find that out or
figure that out in order to render your opinion to the
Boar d?

A The answer is no, it was not rel evant.

Q Thank you. That is the answer.

Is there any place that you would |l ook for a
definition of freight forwarding services? 1Is there
any place within the Standard Land Use Cl assification

Manual where that termis defined?

A | would not recall
Q You don't recall or you don't know?
A I have not seen it, not that | renenber.

Q And packi ng and crating services, do you
recall seeing a definition of that within the Standard
Land Use Codi ng Manual ?

A Wthin the nmanual ?

Q Yes.

A. I would have to look at it to answer your
gquestion. | didn't understand the |last two questions
t hen.

Q So you're saying that maybe it occurs within

t he manual, maybe there is sonmeplace within the manua
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A Coul d you pl ease ask the question again
because | don't understand the question

Q Well, you have descri bed the predom nant
activities as freight forwarding services, and you see
that in the footnotes there on the bottom of Page 55
where certain of these terns used in the manual are
defined. For instance, rapid rail transit and street
railway right-of-way includes only that |and which is
not within the public right-of-way. The footnotes in
some ways define the terms. Did you find any pl ace
wi thin the manual where these terns, "freight
forwardi ng services" or "packing and crating services,"
were defined?

A I don't recall seeing those definitions.

Q Do you know of any other source that you or
people in your field mght rely upon in order to |ocate
a working definition of freight forwarding services?

A. No.

Q Does the word "services" seemto be an
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essential part of the definition or surplusage as used

in the Standard Land Use Codi ng Manual ?

A. I have no opinion on that.
Q You have no opinion on that?
A. That's correct.

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292

Q Does LTD provide freight forwarding services
to any third party?

A What do you nean by a third party?
Q Sonmeone ot her than LTD.
A Yes.
Q To whonf
A | can't tell you that. | don't know |
don't know where the truck goes. The truck |eaves the
prem ses with product in it that have been packaged and
crated, and it is then distributed. | do not know
where it goes once it |eaves the prenm ses other than
it's a business to business transaction.

Q Do you know who owns the goods when they
| eave on the truck off of LTD s facility?

A The customers, as | recall M. Voigt

1447



16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

10

11

explaining to nme, and as | recall fromM. Hara's
deposition, have an account with LTD. It is charged to
their account, the product then | eaves the prem ses,
and, | imagine, after that they're appropriately
i nvoi ced.

Q Well, do you know when title to those goods
changes fromLTD to the custoner?

A I would think that's nore of a | egal question

than a pl anning question, so | could not answer that.
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Q You don't know?

MR. KOLAR:  Cbjection, that calls for a |lega
conclusion. Probably a UCC Article Il expert would
have to answer that.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: 1'Ill sustain it, but
he's already stated that he does not know the answer to
t hat questi on.

MR, KOLAR: Okay.

BY MR. KAI SER
Q To whom does LTD supply packi ng and crating

servi ces?
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A Their custoners.

Q And that's your basis for determ ning that
LTD -- each of these little custoners then, those are
the people to whom they provide the service?

A. Yes.

Q LTD i s not providing goods to them they're
not providing themthe Spirited Hand Pai nter Hol der

that's so realistically detail ed, the Wodland Santa

Planter -- is that LTD s product?
A That's one of the itens that is packaged and
crat ed.

Q Well, what is LTD selling, the product or the

service?
L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
1449
A Bot h.
Q Can you describe for the Board your role in
preparing Appendix B to the noise -- the Board's noise

pol l uti on regul ati ons?
A. | don't understand the question. |'msorry.
Q Coul d you describe to the Board your role in

creating Appendix B to the Board's noi se regul ati ons?
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A I did not create Appendix B to the noise
regul ati ons.

Q So | take it you didn't have a role in the
preparati on of Appendix B?

A You woul d have to define for ne what you nean
by "Appendix B."

Q Well, that's the portion of the regul ations
that refers to the Standard Land Use Codi ng Manual
isn't it?

A I would have to look. | don't recall. |
don't renenber all the appendices.

Q Did you | ook at any legislative history with
respect to the Board's noise pollution regulations in
prepari ng your opinion?

MR. KOLAR:  Cbjection, the regul ations are not
| egislative, they're adm nistrative regul ati ons.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE:  Sust ai ned.

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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BY MR. KAl SER

Q Did you | ook at any of the administrative

history with respect to the pronul gation of the Board's
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noi se regul ations in preparing your opinion?

A No, it was not available to ne.

Q What efforts did you nake to get that
informati on, the adnministrative history?

A | probably would not have reviewed it if it
was available. It was irrelevant. | would rather | ook
at the regulations rather than the legislative history
whi ch woul d be neaningl ess to nme because they are
not -- the adm nistrative regulations that we use are
sonmething to be inplenented, the legislative history is
an interesting anecdote.

Q You have never in the course of your 30 years
practice | ooked at a preanmble to regulations or | ooked
at legislative or adm nistrative history with respect
to regulations in order to better inplenment those
regul ati ons?

A I have | earned many years ago as a federa
official, quite active in legislative matters, that the
legislation itself is a docunent to be eval uated and
i npl emrented and that the |egislative history is

absol utely neaningless in the context of putting

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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regul ations or lawinto effect. Because if we went by
| egi slative history, each one of us would have a
different interpretation of what rules and regul ations
are. That's why they end up in specific defined
gui del i nes even though they may be anbi guous in part.

Q And if they're anbiguous in part, where does
soneone |i ke yourself go for clarification?

A | rely on ny training and nmy experience and
what ever |ibraries or docunentation | have available to
me that | use on a standard basis in ny office.

Q But you don't consider adm nistrative history
of the regulations you're seeking to interpret part of
t hat working body of information that you would rely
on?

A That's correct.

Q Have you ever read any United States Suprene
Court opinions where the Court has relied on
| egislative history in order to resolve a probl em of
statutory or regulatory interpretation?

A Opi nions of the United States Supreme Court
periodically cone to ny office through our planning
journals but | think they would be maybe nore rel evant
to sonebody |ike yourself in the | egal profession than

they would be to ne as a planner working on nore
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mundane matters. | would be nore concerned about what
the opinion of the Court is versus how the Court got to
t hat opi ni on.

Q Have you ever seen an invoice that LTD sends
its custoners?

A No.

Q Do you know whet her LTD breaks down on the
invoice a certain cost for the goods and a certain cost
for the freight forwardi ng, packagi ng and crating
services?

A Since | haven't seen an invoice, | couldn't
answer your question.

Q You didn't ask M. Voigt whether LTD
typically invoiced for the crating and packagi ng
services as a separate line iten?

A Again, it was not relevant to a | and use
det er m nati on.

Q You didn't ask M. Hara whether LTD i nvoiced
separately for the packing and crating services you
claimthey provide their custoners?

A I think I answered that twi ce and the answer
i s no.

MR. KAI SER: Can we see the zoning map again, M.
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MR. KOLAR:  Why certainly.
BY MR KAl SER

Q We' re | ooki ng now at Respondent's Exhibit 90,
which you identified earlier as the Village of
Bannockburn zoning map. You can see that from where
you're seated, can't you, M. Kracower?

A. Partially, yes.

Q And |'m | ooking in the upper |eft-hand corner
where it appears to be an "O " office research
district, in the far northwestern corner of
Bannockburn, is that where LTD s facility is | ocated?

A Yes.

Q Do you see any nanufacturing zones al ong the
tollway within the Village of Bannockburn?

A No.

Q So LTD is located within this office research
district, is that correct?

A | can't see the legend fromhere but if

that's what the "O' neans, the answer the yes.
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Q Yes, and |I'I|l represent that's what the
| egend says, office research district.
When you | ectured at Northwestern University,
was the subject of your lecture interpretation and

application of the Standard Land Use Codi ng Manual ?
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A No.

Q When you did work for the many nunicipalities
you listed including denview, Hi ghland Park, Cicero,
Buffal o Grove, Des Plaines, Addison, Batavia,
Bensenville, did any of your services to those
muni cipalities require you to interpret or apply the
St andard Land Use Codi ng Manual ?

A No.

Q The courses you took at the University of
W sconsin in Madi son, did any of those assign to you as
assi gned reading the Standard Land Use Codi ng Manual ?

A. That's an interesting question. | renenber
that there was a professor by the name of Henry Fagen
at the University of Wsconsin who was in one of ny

courses. And | renenber that he was one of the authors



16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

10

11

or one of the people who worked on the Standard Land
Use Codi ng Manual
But recogni zing that | began college in 1958,
I'm60 years old, and it's the year 2000, ny recal
isn't that great as to -- |I'd probably have trouble
telling you what courses | took |et alone whether or
not | | ooked at the Standard Land Use Codi ng Manual
Q Woul d you say that interpretation and

application of the tables within the Standard Land Use
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Codi ng Manual is closer to an art or a science?

A VWhat | renmenber from graduate school is that
pl anning is both an art and a science, and | think that
that woul d be applicable here too.

Q And with art it's been said beauty is in the
eye of the behol der, have you heard that expression?

A Yes.

Q And could it also be said that with respect
to the proper classification using the Standard Land
Use Cl assification Manual that the proper

classification or an appropriate classification is also
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open to the interpretation of the person called upon to
render the opinion?

A. No, that would be the science part of it.

Q Pl ease distinguish for me which parts of your
anal ysis were the scientific portion that could yield
only one correct answer and which parts were the
interpretive elenents?

A. Well, there is an interpretive el enent |
think to all of it, but it's not that anbiguous or it's
not that it would | ead one to dramatically stray. And
I think that the science part of it is the fact that
t hrough a wi nnowi ng down or a deductive reasoning

process one can cone up with the answers that | have

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

come up with. So if experience and science go hand and
hand, and | think they do, | think that any planner

| ooking at this, although | guess |I'mthe only planner
doing it, but that any planner looking at this would
come up with the sanme conclusions that | have conme up
wi t h.

Q Any planner? You don't think there is a

1456
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singl e planner who would | ook at it and come up with a
di fferent classification?

A | have testified to what | believe to be the
truth, and if there is sonebody else that would like to
testify, they'd be welconme to do the sane.

Q And you would admit, wouldn't you, M.
Kracower, that someone could describe this differently
and not be necessarily wong about the way in which
they described it?

MR, KOLAR: | object to that and probably shoul d
have objected to a sinmilar question to the appraiser in
that there is no land planner on the other side. So
think it's an inproper nethod of getting another |and
pl anni ng opinion in when they didn't hire a | and
pl anner. It calls for specul ation as well

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: 1'll sustain it on

calling for specul ation.

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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BY MR. KAl SER

Q Do nmost | and planners in the Lake County area

charge $285 an hour for their services?
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A I have no idea what other people charge.

Q Do you have any idea how nuch you have
charged LTD to date for your opinion?

A No. | actually do not even review bills in
my office unless there is a problemw th one.

Q Do you think you would be sitting here today
bei ng paid $285 an hour by LTD if you had told LTD in
the spring of 1999 that under this SLUCM code they're
actually a Class B |l and use?

MR. KOLAR: Objection, argumentative.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE:  Sust ai ned.

BY MR. KAI SER
Q Have you ever spent time on the deck | ocated

at the southwest corner of Henry and Leslie Wber's

property?
A No.
Q Have you ever spent tinme in Paul

Rosenstrock's kitchen?
A No, | have never been in the gentleman's
ki t chen.

Q Woul d you consider a falling light fixture a

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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threat to human heal th?

A. A falling light fixture? Could you tell me
where or what?

Q Yes, a light fixture suspended fromthe
ceiling of Paul Rosenstrock's kitchen and eating area.

If you were seated at the table beneath that |ight

fixture and it fell, would that pose a risk to human
heal t h?

A It's nothing | testified to, but | assume if
alight fixture -- | don't have any expertise in his
kitchen, | have no expertise in the light fixture or

any facts about what you're tal king about. The only
thing I can tell youis | imgine if a light fixture
fell on somebody, it would certainly not be beneficia
to their health.

MR. KAl SER: Thank you. | have no further
guesti ons.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar.

MR. KAISER: Wait. Sorry. | spoke too soon. |
have a few quick questions if | may.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Go ahead.
BY MR. KAI SER

Q I want to show you what's previously been

mar ked for purposes of identification as Conplainants’
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Exhi bits 60, 62, 63, 64 and |'m marking --
MR, KOLAR: Do you have copies for ne?
MR. KAI SER:  You have been given copi es.
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: | think you were up to
65.
MR. KAI SER: -- Conpl ai nants' 66.
(Conpl ai nants' Exhibit No. 66
was marked for
i dentification.)
BY MR KAl SER
Q Wth respect to Conplainants' 60, it's a
buil ding pernit preapplication for zoning and
architectural review approval, Village of Bannockburn.
Have you ever seen this docunent before, M. Kracower?
A I don't recall.
Q You note that it appears that the applicant
is LTD Commmodi ties, Inc.?
A Yes.
Q And that they describe their interest in the
subj ect property as a warehouse addition?
A Yes.
Q Do you see that ternf
A Yes.

MR. KOLAR: | don't have copies of these. Can I
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have a monment to | ook at what you're show ng hinf

MR KAI SER:  Sure.

MR, KOLAR: Because | was not given copies of
t hese exhibits.

(Pause in proceedings.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar, | have al
these adnmtted except C-61

MR. KAl SER:  Ckay.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: VWhich was reserved, and

C- 65.
MR. KOLAR: There is no 61 here.
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: | didn't realize he
hadn't included it. | thought he went from 60 to 64.
MR. KAISER: Let's see what 61 is.
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: 61 is a Bannockburn
or di nance.

MR. KOLAR: What he has here is 60, 62, 63, 64 and
a new one of 66.
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Right. | have got 66.

60, 62, 63 and 64 are all previously adnmitted.
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MR KAISER: Which is the Schoner dep transcript.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: -- | think we adnitted
t hat .
L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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MR. KAISER: | think so. That was --
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: | can't read ny --
MR KAISER: | believe we stipulated to that the
first day.
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: |Is that your
understanding as well, M. Kol ar?

MR. KOLAR: Well, that's certainly sonething that
is part of the record, but there are objections in
there that would have to be resol ved.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Right, | have "subj ect
to objections.”

MR, KOLAR: Right, that's accurate then subject to
you | ooki ng at the objections.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Ri ght, we haven't done
that yet, right?

MR. KOLAR Right.
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HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: | just can't read ny

note whether it's adntted or not.

MR, KOLAR: | thought you were going to do that on
your own.
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: | think | probably wll

at some point.
MR. KOLAR: | have | ooked at them

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Go ahead, M. Kai ser.

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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MR. KAl SER:  Thank you.
BY MR KAl SER:

Q Al right. Just to pick up the thread here,
M. Kracower, | understand that you do not recall
seei ng Conpl ai nants' Exhibit 60, this building permt
preapplication for zoning and architectural review
approval, is that right?

A Yes.

Q Do you recall seeing C-62 which is a letter
from Lohan & Associates to David Lot hspeich,
L-o0-t-h-s-p-e-i-c-h, of the Village of Bannockburn

dated February 21, 1994?
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A No.

Q You have never seen that or you don't recal
seeing it?

A | just don't recall seeing it. | don't
renmenber that name.

Q Al right. And, again, that tal ks about the
LTD war ehouse expansi on, do you see that?

A Yes, | do.

Q C-63, a letter again from Lohan & Associ ates
to M. Lothspeich dated February 21, 1994, have you
ever seen that?

A Not that | recall, no.

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

1463

Q C-64, Village of Bannockburn ordi nance, do
you recogni ze that?

A I may have seen this -- | think I have seen
this before.

Q In connection with the preparation of your
opinions in this case?

A. Yes.

Q Do you recall about how nmuch tinme you spent



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

| ooki ng at this docunment, Village of Bannockburn's
or di nances?

A Well, | amnot certain | have seen it. There
were several rezonings of the property dating back to
1977, and | don't know if that's one of themthat |
have reviewed. | can't be that certain.

Q But you see there in the first paragraph that
they refer to LTD is the occupant of a warehouse and
office facility?

A Yes, | see that.

Q Do you recall seeing anywhere in this
docunent reference to LTD operating a freight
forwardi ng service at the Bannockburn | ocation?

MR. KOLAR:  This docunent is in evidence?

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE:  Yes.

MR, KOLAR: Then | object. It speaks for itself.

L.A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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People can read it and see if it says that.
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE:  Sust ai ned.
BY MR, KAl SER

Q And |'m just asking, can you, M. Kracower,
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show us anywhere in that docunent where it describes
LTD s operations as either freight forwardi ng services
or packing and crating services?

MR, KOLAR: Sane obj ection.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kaiser, how is that
different than --

MR, KAISER: | nean, if he wants to just say, "No,

| can't," then we're done, then M. Kolar can find it
and bring it to the Board's attention during his
response brief. | don't think it's in there.

THE WTNESS: It tal ks about | oadi ng areas.
BY MR KAI SER

Q Does it use the term"crating and packing

services" or "freight forwardi ng services"?

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: 1'm going to sustain the
objection. | think the docunent will speak for itself;
and if it does say so, the Board will take note of

t hat .

MR. KAl SER:  Ckay. Very good.

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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BY MR KAl SER

Q Have you seen this letter from M. Kolar to
the Village of Bannockburn dated May 4, 1998 and
identified for the record as Conpl ai nants' Exhibit 667

A Yes, | have seen this.

Q Did you read that in preparation of your
opi ni ons that you offered here today?

A Yes.

Q Do you see here on Page 1 that M. Kol ar
refers to FMC Corporation built an approxi mately
155, 000 square foot warehouse with offices at the north
hal f of the LTD property?

A Uh- huh, yes, | see that.

Q At what point in your preparation and
analysis did you review M. Kolar's letter of My 4,
19987

A Rat her early on.

MR. KAI SER:  Thank you. | have no further
guesti ons.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kracower, do you
want to take a break or --

THE WTNESS: No, I'mfine

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar, do you need

any time?

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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MR. KOLAR: No, I'd like to go ahead.
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Let's do the redirect.
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR. KOLAR:
Q In that letter of May 4, 1998 did you al so

read the reference to the April 20, 1997 letter by Pau

Schomer ?
A Yes.
Q And you read that Paul Schoner was

Bannockburn's noi se consul tant?

A Yes.

Q And in that letter of April 20, 1997 he
agreed with you that LTD should be a C, as in Charles,
cl assification?

A That's correct.

Q Again, in ternms of that 400,000 square feet
thing in Bannockburn, generally or generically, it's a
war ehouse, correct?

A Peopl e such as yourself, and with all due
respect are |lawers, and there is another gentleman
here who's an architect who wote a letter, Lohan
Conpany and others, there is nothing wong calling the
entire structure a warehouse in a generic sense. And

that's commonly done, and | don't believe it's
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i nappropriate. In terms of |ooking at the SLUCM code
in having to be nore definitive and nore scientific,
it's necessary to break things down in a nmuch nore
definitive manner, which | have done and which
everybody who uses that SLUCM code is conpelled to do.
So you can't say to sonebody that they're dramatically
wrong when they talk in broad terns about a warehouse.
But the SLUCM code says you nust | ook inside the
war ehouse and | ook at the specific uses and the
predom nant uses that are going on. And it also says
you nust | ook at those areas that have, you know, the
predom nant floor area and what's happening in there.
And that's when a person is conpelled to nake a nore
speci fic |l and use determ nation

Q Where we are today, we can call this a
buil ding, right?

A. We are in an office building today but there
are all kinds of office buildings. W happen to be in
a public governnmental building or we could be in a

courthouse or we could be in an insurance building that
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is labor intensive, but there are all types of office
buil di ngs, there are all types of so-called warehouses,
there are all types of manufacturing plants, there are

all types of housing, but housing can be single fanmly,
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multiple fam |y townhones. So that really is the
pur pose of the SLUCM code. And if you read the
i ntroduction of the code, it goes through the anal ogy
of how at that time HHFA and the Bureau of Hi ghways
felt it was necessary to be nore -- for cities to be
nore specific in | and use deternmni nations.

Q In terns of that SLUCM code, did you read in
my May 4, 1998 letter that it was published in 1969, at

| east according to ny letter?

A Yes.

Q Were you in college in 19697

A No, | was not.

Q Well, if that's true, it would have been

publ i shed after you conpl eted your education?
A That woul d be correct. Maybe that's why |

never read it.
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Q  Could be.

Let nme ask you sone of the follow ups that

you weren't able to answer

in cross exani nation.

You nentioned you were at LTD on five

occasi ons, correct?

A Yes.

Q And on four of those occasions what did you

notice regarding the tollway?

L. A. REPORTING (312)

419-9292

A On four of the five occasions | noticed that

the noise fromthe tollway was equal to, if not nore,

severe than the generation of noise fromthe

t ruckl oadi ng docks at LTD.

Q Woul d you say that on any of those four

occasi ons you were overwhel ned by the noise of the

tol | way?

A On four of those occasions, when | parked ny

car and wal ked in front of the plaintiffs' three hones,

I was actually overwhel ned by the significance of the

noi se fromthe tollway.

noi se woul d be that severe

never

antici pated that the

1469
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Q M. Kai ser nentioned or discussed with you
whet her a berm coul d be built between LTD and the
conpl ai nants' properties, do you recall those
guestions?

A Yes.

Q A good tinme for a | andscape architect or |and
pl anner to | ook at a berm woul d have been before this
whol e subdi vision was platted, correct?

MR. KAI SER:  Obj ection, |eading.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE:  Sust ai ned.

BY MR KOLAR:

Q When woul d have been a good tinme for someone

L. A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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such as yourself to analyze a type of bermto put in
between LTD Commodities and the residential use in Lake
Forest to the north?

MR. KAI SER: Obj ection, relevance.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE:  Overrul ed.

THE WTNESS: It would have been at the tine the
subdi vision to the north of LTD was desi gned and

pl atted.
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BY MR, KOLAR:
Q And the bermthat you described al ong 294 by

t he new subdivision to the north, Conway Farns --

A Yes.

Q -- about how high is that bern?

A I can only estimate that that would be
sonmewhere in the 20 foot range or nore. It's a very
hi gh berm

Q Could you fit a bermlike that between LTD
and the conplainants' properties at that wi dth and that
hei ght ?

A. No because berns normally should be in the
range of three feet to one, and it would not physically
fit.

MR. KAISER: 1'mgoing to object to this line of

questioning. It wasn't discl osed.

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292

1471

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Overruled. This was
covered on cross exam nati on.
BY MR KOLAR:

Q And in terns of social and econom c val ue of
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LTD to the conmunity, it's your testinony that the rea

estate taxes generated is one aspect of that val ue,

correct?

A Yes.

Q Anot her aspect woul d be jobs created,
correct?

A Yes, that's what | said.

Q But you're not saying here today that those
two things are only things that go into deternining the
soci al and/or econom c value of a business, is that
accurate?

A. No, they're -- but | think the enpl oynent
base, the tax revenue and -- | nean, there are other
factors that | did not discuss such as secondary
sources of revenue. In other words. |If you have in
excess of 60 enpl oyees, which they do, it's possible
that they buy goods and services in the comunity. So
there are other revenues and attributes that go into
not just LTD but all of the nonresidential uses in that

devel opnent .

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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Q Why is the length of tine that LTD s
i nventory would be in the warehouse before it's packed,
crated and shipped to their custoners, why is that not
rel evant to you? You had indicated that in an answer
to M. Kaiser.

A I don't know whether it's 10 days, 30 days or
50 days has any relationship to determ ning the
classification of land use. | mean, once you know what
the use is, the tine element is of no significance.

Q As you sit here today do you know if LTD
Commodities includes in the cost it charges its
custoners for its products, its |abor cost which would
i ncl ude picking product, packing product and shi ppi ng
it?

A I would only -- | don't know as a fact, | can
only assume it woul d.

Q You don't know if there is a separate line
item for packing and crating --

A. No.

Q --or if it's built into the cost of selling
the products, right?

A No, | had indicated "'mnot famliar with
their invoicing systemor their accounting system

Q You know generally as a | and planner that

L. A, REPORTING (312) 419-9292
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busi nesses try to price their goods or services so that

they' Il make a profit?

A. I know |l do that in my business. | assune
that's pretty nmuch the Anerican way unless it's
not-for-profit.

MR. KOLAR: | don't have any other questions.

MR. KAI SER: Just a few.

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Recr oss.

RECROSS EXAM NATI ON
BY MR KAI SER

Q M. Kracower, how often do you think or do
you know any of LTD s custoners call up LTD and say,
"W don't want to buy your goods, we just want you to
pack and ship a few things of our owmn"? How often do
you think that happens?

A I don't understand. | don't know what you
mean "of our own."

Q Things that don't belong to LTD.

Say |'mone of LTD s custoners, in the past |
bought the Santa Planter fromthem | paid themthe
i nvoice they sent me. Now | want themto store in
their warehouse and then ship to ne a | awmn nower, how
often do you suppose that happens?

A | don't believe they sell |awn nowers.
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Q Well, say | ask

themto send nme a nice towe

set but not one of the towel sets that LTD sells

t hrough their catal og, do

often, M. Kracower?

you think that happens very

A | have no idea
Q How often do you think a custoner of LTD s
calls up and says, you know, "I just need to store a

few of my own goods in your warehouse, give ne 10

square feet in the back"?
happens?

MR, KOLAR: |f at al
BY MR KAl SER

Q If at all?

A I have -- | just

How often do you think that

have no understandi ng of

what you're even asking nme to be honest at this stage.

Q You're telling t

he Board that LTD provides

packi ng and crating services to its custonmers. |I'm

aski ng you how often do those custonmers, to whom LTD is

provi di ng packi ng and crat
they call up LTD and say,

crate products of ny own,

i ng services, how often do
“I"d like you to pack and

somet hing ' m manuf acturing"?

1474



22

23

24

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

A I have no idea. | think you' re best off
aski ng sonmebody from LTD if that ever happened.

Q Did you ever ask anyone at LTD whet her that

L.A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

happened?

A I couldn't even contenplate that would
happen, so the answer is no.

Q And you couldn't contenplate that because

that's not what LTD does, right?

A I don't believe that's predomn nantly what
t hey do.

MR. KAI SER: Thank you. | have no further
guesti ons.

MR, KOLAR: No questions.
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: Thank you, sir. You can
step down.
Let's go off the record.
(O f the record.)
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kaiser, you wanted
to nmove for the adm ssion of C 667

MR, KAISER: Yes, | would ask that the Board to
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recei ve Compl ai nants' Exhibit 66.
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: M. Kol ar, do you object
to that.
MR. KOLAR:  No.
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: That's admitted.
(Conpl ai nants' Exhibit No. 66

was admitted into evidence.)

L.A. REPORTING (312) 419-9292

HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE: That's it for today.
We'll see you back here tonorrow
MR, KOLAR:  9:30 tonorrow?
HEARI NG OFFI CER KNI TTLE:  9: 30.
(Which were all the
proceedi ngs had in the
above-captioned cause at this

time.)
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STATE OF ILLINO S )
) SS.
COUNTY OF C O O K)
|, DEBORAH T. BRAUER, Certified Shorthand
Reporter and Notary Public in and for the County of
Lake, State of Illinois, do hereby certify that |

caused to be reported in shorthand and thereafter

transcri bed the foregoing transcript of proceedings.

| further certify that the foregoing is a

true, accurate and conplete transcript of nmy shorthand
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notes so taken as aforesaid; and further, that | am not
counsel for nor in any way related to any of the
parties to this action, nor aml in any way interested
in the outcome thereof.

I N TESTI MONY WHEREOF, | have hereunto set ny
hand and affixed ny notarial seal this 6th day of June,

2000.

Deborah T. Brauer, CSR
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